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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21° (Twenty-first) Annual General Meeting of Cyber Pearl

Information Technology Park Private Limited will be held on Monday, the 2

5t day of September

2023 at 3:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Unit no. 7 & 8,1 Floor, Pinnacle
Building, International Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani, Chennai - 600113 to transact the following

business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023 together with the report of the Board of Directors and

Auditors thereon.
By Order of the Board
For Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited
N S
“) Neha Sin
= ) Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad ‘ _/:«},:j, (A-32391)
Date: 14 August 2023 N
NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE, ON A POLL, THEREAT INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY

NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. AN INSTRUMENT OF PROXY TO BE EFFECTIVE SHALL BE LODGED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate
not more than 10% of the total paid-up share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be
appointed by a Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting

rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or member.

Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Pvt Ltd

5t Floor, Capella Block,

Plot No. 17, Software Units Layout, Madhapur,
Hyderabad 500081, Telangana, India

Regd Off: Unit No. 7&8, 15t Floor, Pinnacle Building, International Tech Park,
CSIR Road, Taramani, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India 600113,
CIN: U72500TN2002PTC099624 Tel: (91) 44 4225 6000 Fax: (91) 44 4225 6020

CIN: U45200TG2010PTC068101
Tel ; (91) 40 6628 5000
Fax: (91) 40 6628 5001

E-mail: hyderabad@capitaland.com

www.capitaland.com
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS,
CYBER PEARL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PARK PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors' have pleasure in presenting the 21% Annual Report on the business and

operations of the Company along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023.

F: FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
The financial results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the corresponding figures for the

last year are as under: -

For the year| For the year
ended ended March
Particulars March 31, at;
2023 2022
(Rs.in Mn.)| (Rs.in Mn.)
Revenue from Operations 786.94 734.28
Finance & Other Income 62.98 52.74
Profit [lLoss beforeDepreciation, Finance Costs, 657.66 596.11
Exceptional ltems and Tax Expense
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 189.49 191.33
Profit/ Loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional 468.17 404.78
Itemsand Tax Expense
Less: Finance Costs 189.09 188.75
Profit/ Loss before Exceptional ltems and Tax 279.08 216.03
Expense
Add/ Less: Exceptional ltems 303.82 -
| Profit/ Loss before Tax Expense -24.72 216.03
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 107.59 64.80
Profit/ Loss for the year (1) -132.33 151.23
Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (2) - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the -132.33 151.23
year(1+2)
Add: Balance of Profit/(Loss) for earlier years brought 1094.4 944.84
forward (Retained Earnings)
Less: Transfer from / (to) Debenture Redemption -1.66 -1.67
Reserve
Less: Transfer to Reserves - -
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Less: Effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 Leases (nef - -
oftaxes)
Balance of Retained Earnings carried Forward at 1248.55 1380.88
theend of the reporting period
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il BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/
STATEOF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The company is primarily engaged in the business of developing, aperating and maintaining
Industrial Parks and incidental and associated activities. The company derives revenue
through the lease of the developed area to enterprises engaged in information technology and
information technology enablad services in Chennai and Hyderabad.

Hl. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

V. DIVIDEND

Your Directors’ have not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year 2022-2023.

V. ~ RESERVE

No amount was transferred to the reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

VI, - LISTING -~ -

During the year under review, the Debentures of your Company were listed on the BSE Limited

(BSE), Mumbai. The Listing fees to the Stock Exchange for the year 2023-2024 have been
paid.

The Company has not received any grievances from the investors.
The company has redeemed 925 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCD

Series -1"} and 740 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.1 million each

(“NCD Series - 2" listed on BSE on 27 June 2023.Consequent to the redemption of NCDs the
Company is delisted from BSE.

VIl.. CREDIT RATING -~

During the year under review, ICRA-the rating agency reaffirmed the company rating to
BBB+{stable) as under:

[ RATING AGENCY RATING NATURE OF SECURITIES
ICRA BBB+(stable} 925 Redeemable Unsecured Non
Convertible Debentures
ICRA BBB+ (stable) 740 Redeemable Unsecured Non
Convertible Debentures

VIll. SUBSIDIARY GOMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES/! ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

The Company is not having any Subsidiaries or Associate Companies or Joint Ventures for
theperiod ended on 31 March 2023.
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EX. DEPQSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73
read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 from the public. The Company has

notreceived any loans from the Directors or relative(s) of directors, pursuant to rule 2(viii) of
section 73.

X. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE OUTGO: I A

The Campany is engaged in the business of development, and operation of IT Parks. There are
no particulars to be disclosed under the provisions of Section 134 (3} read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of "Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption etc.

There were no foreign exchange earnings during the year under raview while the foreign

exchange outflow is separately covered in the notes on accounts forming part of the audited
financial statements of the Company.

XL..  PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by the company are given in the notes to the financial
statements.

XI.  ° INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEWMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY S

The Company has adequate internal control systems sommensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations.

With an aim to monitor and control day-to-day operations of the Company, the Company has
set up internal control systems for regular tracking and reporting. The Company has adequate
material internal financial controls and such Interal financial controls were operating
effectively. The auditors of your company have endorsed the same view in their report.

In order to further strengthen the system of Internal Control and to provide the Board of Directors
with an ability to oversee internal controis, Internal Financial Controt (JFC) system was put in
place in accordance with the requirements of Section 134(5)(e) of Companies Act 2013. Internal
Control systems were implemented, considering the framework suggested in Guidance Note on
‘Audit of Internal Financiat Controls over the Financial Reporting’ issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india, to address the operational and financial risk.

XIl. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Roard consists of 3 non-executive directors. At present, the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of your Company are.

[ NAME OF DIRECTOR/ KMP 1 CATEGORY -~ =~ R j
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M. Sanjeev Dasgupta

Chairman & Non-executive Director

Mr, Ying Seon Cheah

Non-executive Director

Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar

Nan-executive Director

| Mrs. Neha Singh

Company Secretary

Appointment: -

During the year under review, your Board appointed Mr Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar
as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2022.

Regulatisation of Additional Director: -

In the Annual General Meeting held on 22 July 2022, Mr. Ying Soon Cheah and
Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar appointment was regularised as director.

MEETINGS

The meetings of the Board are schaduled at regular intervals io decide and discuss on
businessperformance, policies, strategies and other matters of significance. The schedule for
the meetingswas circulated in advance, to ensure proper planning and effective participation
in meetings. In certain exigencies, decisions of the Board were also accorded through

circulation.

The details of Board Meetings convened during FY 2022-2023 are tabulated below:-

Meetings

No. of Meetings held

Date of the Meetings ]

Board Meetings

19 May 2022, 21 July 2022,

7 11 August 2022, 07 November
2022
13 February 2023, 07 March,
2023, &
29 March 2023
Annual General 1 22 July 2022
Meeting
Name of the Attendance on
Directors
o ™
o o | 8 |8 & Q 2
o ] < o~ s} o
o Q ™ o . ™ o
C:\ o B o & ot £
= | = =5 3] o
= 3 2 | ¢ 5 g 5
- ™ — = b (o))
— I~ 3] [ram] (1]
D e
Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta Y Y Y Y Y Y N
Mr. Ying Soon Cheah Y N Y Y Y N Y
Mr. Nagabhushanam Y N Y Y Y N Y
Gauwi Shankar

The frequency of the Board Meetings was in accordance with the requirement under

Companies Act, 2013.

The 20" Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 22 July 2022,

XV RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
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All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm'’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of the business.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with Promoters,
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have potential conflict with
interest of the company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1), as
prescribed in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under Chapter IX relating to Accounts of
Companies under the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure A.

XV STATUTORY AUDITOR’S

Consequent to completion of two consecutive 5-year term by M/s. S R Batliboi & Associates,
LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of Company, M/s. S R Batliboi &
Associates, LLP, ceased to be Statutory Auditors of the Company. Further to this, the Board
recommended M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of
the Company. Your Shareholders approved the appointment of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells,
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the first term of 5 years i. e.
from the conclusion of 20th AGM to the conclusion of 25th AGM i.e. from FY 2022/23 to FY 2026/27.

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors' remarks
in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any future comments.

XVI SCRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors appointed M/s. DSMR & Associates, Company Secretary (CP No. 4239) as
Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2022-2023.

The Secretarial Audit Report given by Secretarial Auditors is annexed with the report as Annex
ure— B.

XVl WEB ADDRESS IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN REFERRED TO IN SuUB
SECTION (3) OF SECTION 92 PLACED

The web address where Annual Return as referred to in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

would be available after filling the same with Registrar of Companies is httpsi/ir.a-
itrust.com/cp.html.

XVIll RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed a risk
management policy to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business

objectives. At present the Company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the
existence of the Company.

XIX CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has formed a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as per Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules made there under. The details of CSR
spending are enclosed in CSR Annexure | Annexure C. The CSR policy has been
uploaded in the Company’s website with the following link: https://ir.a-itrust.com/cp.html
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Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder
(including statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) or amendments in the applicable rules

thereof for the timebeing in force as on date of this Report), the Members of the CSR Committee
are:

1. Mr. Sanjeev Dasgupta, Committee Chairman
2. Mr. Ying Soon Cheah, Committee Member
3. Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar, Committee Member (w.e.f. 19 May 2022)

XX  WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board has framed a Whistle-Blower Policy to conduct the affairs of its constituents in a fair
and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism.

The policy guides the Directors, Employees and other stakeholders to report genuine concerns
about unethical behavior,actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of Conduct or palicy.

The policy has been uploadedin the Company’s website with the following link: https://ir.a-
itrust.com/cp.html.

XXl SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future.

XXl CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL/ NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares during the year under review. Ascendas Property
Fund (India) Pte Ltd (APFI) (a Company incorporated in Singapore and registered as Foreign
Venture Capital Investment (FVC!) Company under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000), holds 99.99% of the Company'’s total

issued and paid-up share capital. The balance .01% is held by Ascendas Property Fund Trustee
Pte Ltd.

The Company has issued 1,325 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCD
Series -1") on March 30, 2015 aggregating to Rs.1,325 million which carry an interest rate of 19%
per annum payable half yearly (on May 15 and November 15).During the year ended March 31,
2018, the Company has reset the rate of interest from 19% pa to 13.65% pa with effect from April

1, 2018 on both series of debentures with the approval of debenture trustees and debenture
holders.

However, the Company has redeemed 4A00NCDs of Rs. 10 Lakhs each, out of 1,325 NCDs and

remitted Rs. 40,21,21,323 on April 15, 2019 to the debenture holder -Ascendas Property Fund (FDI)
Pte. Ltd.

The term of 925 NCDs was deferred by another 15 years and consequently move the maturity /
redemption date from March 29, 2020 to March 28, 2035.

The Company has also issued 740 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.
million each ("NCD Series - 2"), partly paid up of Rs.0.14 milion each on March 11, 2016
aggregating to Rs.102.49 million which carry an interest rate of 19% per annum payable half yearly
(on May 15 and November 15). The Company has further received 1st call money of Rs.0.31 million
per NCD on May 31, 2016 aggregating to Rs.230 million. After 1st call money the paid up value per
NCD is Rs.0.45 million and debenture value amounting to Rs.332.49 million. During the year ended
March 31, 2018, the Company has reset the rate of interest from 19% pa to 13.65% pa with effect

from April 1, 2018 on both series of debentures with the approval of debenture trustees and
debenture holders.
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Redemption:

The company has redeemed 925 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convartible Debentures ("NCD
Series -1") and 740 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.1 million each
("NCD Series - 2") on 27 June 2023.

XXl DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors of your Company hereby state that:-

— in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,

~ stich accounting policies were selected and applied them cansistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reascnable and prudent $o as to give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

— proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

— the ahnhual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

_  The internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

|

XXIV PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

in terms of the provisions of section 187{12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and with rule 5(2) and 5 (3)
of the Companies {(Appointmant and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, none of the
employee draws remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules.

XXV DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSWMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has a policy at group level
on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions

of Sexual Harassment of Wornen at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the rules framed thereunder.

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up at group level to redress compiaints on sexual
harassment.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.

XXVl MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have occurred

between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financiai statements refate and on
the date of this report.

However, the company has redeemed 925 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debeantures
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("NCD Series -1") and 740 Redeemable Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs.1 million each

("NCD Series - 2") as on 27 June 2023 and repaid outstanding non-convertible debentures along with
interest.

The Company has also issued 129,00,000 Unsecured and redeemable offshore rupee denominated
bonds of face value of Rs. 100 each, aggregating to Rs. 129,00,00,000 on 29 May 2023.

XXVII SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company had complied with all the applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS-1 &5S-2).

XXVII CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC)

The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year.

XXIX COST AUDIT RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under the provisions of

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under for the services rendered by
the Company.

XXX FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS
No fraud was reported by the Auditors in their reports during the year under review.

XXX! THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE

TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS:

As per Clause xii read with Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, no loans from the
banks/ Financial Institutions were under One Time Settlement during the year under review.

Hence, the difference between amount of Valuation done at the time of Settlement and Valuation done
at the time of taking loans from the banks did not arise.

XXXII ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We thank our vendors, stakeholders, debenture-holders and bankers for their continued support
during the year. We place on record our appreciation of the contribution made by employees at all

levels. Our resilience to meet challenges was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, co-
operation and support.

By order of the Board
For Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Ltd.

CM{‘/‘! L('?_- .
Sanjeev Ddsgupta Ying Soon Cheah
Director Director

Place: Singapore (DIN:00090701) (1 ier, . (DIN: 09406160)
Date:14 August 2023 s
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Annexure - A

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of
theGCompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of
related parties referred to in sub section (

certain arms jength transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

Name(s}of | Nature of Duration of Saiient termsof | Justification Amount Date(s) of | Date on
the refated | contracts! the contracts | the contracts | for antering paid as approval by | which the
party & anangements/ | / arrangeme | Or arrangement into such advances | the Board special
Nature of transactions nls s Of contracts or , If any resolution
relationship firansactions | transacfions arrangeme Was
including the nts or passed in
value, if any trangaction §' General
meeting
as
required
under
first
proviso
to section
188
N NIL NIL NiL NIL MIL NIL NIL
3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:
| Name(s} of the Mature of Duration | Salient terms of Justification for | Amount paid Date(s) of
related party & contracts! cf the the contracts or entering into g5 advances, | approval
Nature of arrangements/ | contracts | arrangements of such contracts ffany bythe
relationshi fransaclions ! transactions or arrangement Board
p arrangem | including the value, |s or
ents if any transactions’
ftransactio
ns
| Capital.and Property 10 Years | Avaiting of General NIL NIL August
Services (India) Management w.ef Augus Management, 7, 2017
Private Limited Agreesment 1, 2007 Property
{CSIPL) formerly Management,
{Ascendas Services Lease
{india) Private Management,
Limited ASIPL) Marketing etc.
{transaction value
as menlionad in the
financials of the
\ companyl.




3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of
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business:
Name(s) of | Nature of Duration of Salient termsof |Justification Amount Date(s) of | Date on ]
the related | contracts/ the contracts | the contracts  |for entering paid as approval by | which the
party & arrangements/ | / arrangeme | or arrangement |into such advances | the Board | special
Nature of transactions nts s or contracts or , ifany resolution
relationship ftransactions | transactions arrangeme was
including the  |nts or passed in
value, if any transaction s' General
meeting
as
required
under
first
proviso
to section
188
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

By order of the Board

For Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private

Place: Singapore
Date:14 August 2023

(DIN:00090701)

Limited
Sanjeev Dasgupta Ying Soon zeah
Director Director

(DIN: 09406160)
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: SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
. FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CYBER PEARL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PARK PRIVATE LIMITED
Unit No. 7 & 8, 1% Floor, Pinnacle Building

International Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani,

Chennai — 600113

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate practices by CYBER PEARL INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY PARK PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN: U72900TN2002PTC099624) (hereinafter
referred to as the Company).

Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon. '

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
- _ filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the

Company as stated above, during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31%
March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31%' March, 2023 according to
the provisions of:

i. The Corﬁpanies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
. under in respect to the listed debt securities;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under to
the extent of issue of Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made lher%
under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, &P*%%?\
NAE=2
During the period of our audit the Company has not made any traps \.‘\\ﬁiencgp
the reporting of compliance under the FEMA regulations does not rise® / ok

E——

PAageE 1 oI5
# 6-3-668/10/427Plot No.42, 2nd Floor, Durga Nagar Colony, Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500082

Tele Fax: 040-2340 8776, Cell :98482 43356, E-mall: ram.devata@gmall.com

DSMR 8 Associates
Company Secretaries
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DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a)

(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt

Securities) Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure '

Regquirements) Regulations, 2015 [to the extent applicable for Companies which
has its Debt Securities listed on the exchanges]

Pursuant to the Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 issued by
SEBI with regard to certain provisions of Chapter IV of SEBI ((Listing Obligations
and-Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations) 2021 shall apply
to a listed entity that has listed its non-convertible debt securities and has an
outstanding ‘value of listed non-convertible debt securities of Rupees Five
Hundred Crore and above with effect from 7" September, 2021.

Since the value of company's listed non-convertible debt securities does not

exceed Rupees Five Hundred Crores, it is not required to comply with the said
provisions.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing

with client with regard to its Equity Shares and Debentures.

Since the Company's Equity Shares are not listed on any Stock Exchange, the following

regulations, which are applicable to companies whose Equity Shares are listed, does not
apply to the Company:

(@)
(b)
()
(d)
(e)
(f)

Vi.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the @%@&P et

The .Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit
Schemes) Regulations, 2014;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the
Company and on the examination of the relevant documents and records in
pursuance thereof, on test -check basis the Company has complied with the
following specific law to the extent applicable to the Company:

Airport Authority Act, 1994
Forest Conservation Act, 1980
Indian Forest Act, 1947
Transfer of Property Act, 1882
Registration Act, 1908

Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Services) Act, 1996

~0o0TY

Q\i‘s o
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g. Building and Other Construction Workers (Welfare Cess) Act, 1996 %,,?‘J n “
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(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. Since the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of directors
(SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) have been
notified and were made effective from 01% July, 2015, the company has
complied with the said Standards.

(i) The Company has also entered into Listing Agreement with the BSE Limited
for listing of its debt securities. The Company has complied with all the
provigions of the listing agreement and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as far as applicable to the
companies having its debt securities listed.

| further report that since the company “CYBER PEARL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
PARK PRIVATE LIMITED” being a private limited company, there is no such requirement as
per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 to appoint independent directors/ Whole time

- _ director/ Managing director/ directors retiring by rotation. However, the board of the

Company has been constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors.

Mr. Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar (DIN: 09406160) was appointed as an additional

director of the company with effect from 015 April 2022 and the appointment was approved
by way of Circular Resolution. :

Mr Nagabhushanam Gauri Shankar (DIN: 09406160) was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2022 and his appointment was regularized as
Director in the Annual General Meeting held on 22 July 2022.

Mr. Ying Soon.Cheah (DIN: 09406160) was appointed as an additional director of the

company w.e.f. 24" November 2021 and his appointment was regularized as Director in the
Annual General Meeting held on 22 July 2022.

The Company has a Company Secretary (hereinafter referred to as KMP) as envisaged
under the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

| further report that the compliance by the company of the applicable financial laws such as
direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has
not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by Statutory
financial auditor and other designated professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings‘ were sent in
accordance with the statutory requirement. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
being sent at least seven days in advance. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes. '

The Company has complied with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the rulem@&ess
there under. & }\5‘5?\ & ,NR'\E
oM eE©
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| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
. . compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that, during the audit period there were no other specific events / actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs.

~ For DSMR & Associates
' Company Secretaries

Place: Hyderabad -
Date; 7" August, 2023

Ve sty .

DS MRam
2 C. P. No. 4239
Proprietor

UDIN: AD14939E000755162

Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021

e

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure ‘A’
To,
The Members,

CYBER PEARL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY PARK PRIVATE LIMITED
Unit No. 7 & 8, 1% Floor, Pinnacle Building

International Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani,

Chennai - 600113

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management’s responsibility:

T Maintenan'ce of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on my audit.

Auditor's Responsibility:

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain

reasonable assurances about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

4. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

Disclaimer:

5. The Secretarial-Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. \We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company and compliance with the applicable accounting
standards since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors.

For DSMR & Associates
Company Secretaries

D SMRam
C. P. No. 4239
N NS i Proprietor
“ UDIN: A014939E000755162
Peer Review Certificate No. 1252/2021

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 7™ August, 2023

-

-
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Deloitte ’ Charlered Accountarits

Prestige Trade Tower, Level 19
= 46, Palace Road, High Grounds
Haskins & Sells - Bengaur 560001

Karnataka, Inthia

et o 2o gt R AU AL 117137

Tei; +91 80 6188 6000
Fax: +91 80 67188 6011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Cyber Peari Information Technology Parlk Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cyber Pearl Information Technology
] Park Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
: and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes In Equity for the year then anded, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

s LI TR

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS®) and other accountlng principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its loss, total
comprenhensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3 We conducted our audit of the flnancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditer’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance wikth the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
rade thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
; requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financiat statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 36 to the Statement, relating to the accounting treatment adopted by
the Company pursuant to a Schemne of Amalgamation of a subsidiary with the Company, approved
in June 2015 by Honourable High Court of Madras (“the Court™ and other relevant regulatory
authorities. As per the approved accounting treatment read with AS 14, Accounting for
Amalgamations, the Company in its financial statements had recognized goodwill and is amortizing
the same over its useful life, This accounting treatment of amortization of geodwill Is different from
that prescribed under the appiicable Indian Accou nting Standards. Had the Company folowed the
principtes of Ind AS 103, the depreciation and amortization expense would have been lower and
the profit for year ended March 31, 2023 would have been higher by 40.24 mitiion, thus causing
other equity being higher by Rs. 563.26 million as at March 31, 2023 (As at March 31, 2022 - Rs.
603,50 million). Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
conkext of our audit of the financial statements as a whele, and in farming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Sr. No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1 Evaluation of Tax Litigations/positions | Principal audit procedures performed:
- Refer note 35 (¢) of the financial

j s Assessed the design,
| statements

implementation and  operating
effectiveness of management’s key
internat contrels over evaluation of
potential impact of litigations
including controls over recognition
of provisions relating to taxation and
disclasures on contingent Hability.

« Obtained list of direct and indirect
tax litigations as at March 31, 2023
from the management.

«  We together with our tax specialists,
evaluated Management’s
assessment with respect te such tax
fitigations ko assess the adequacy of
tax  provisions including  the
outcome of previous litigations and
other judicial pronouncements on
similar matters etc.

+ We have assessed the adequacy of

the Company's disclosures in
respect of contingent liabilities In
the fnancial stalements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
s« The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the
flnancial statements and our auditor's raport thereon,

Our opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the other informaticn and we do not
express any form of assurance concluslon thereon,

In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in deing sa, cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or our knowledge cobtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based ¢n the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materlal misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal flnancial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
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relevant ta the preparation and presentation of the financial staterent that give a true and fair view
£ and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a guing concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using
5 the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
; Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibifity for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a kigh level of assurance, but is not a
quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
matertal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement rasulting from fraud is higher than for ene resuiting from
arrot, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionai omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financiai control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3}(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing ocur opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in piace and the operating effectiveness
of such caontiols,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are ihadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a qoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the financial statements, Including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or In
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie user of
the financial statemenks may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiaiity and quailtative
factors in {1} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our worlk; and (ii)
! to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financlal statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethica! reguirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to hear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period angd are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report uniess law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such cammunication.

Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Regquirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

€)

f

a)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of gur
knowledge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audik,

In out opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bean kept by the Company
so far ag it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of books
of account and other bocks and papets maintained in electronic mode has not been

maintained on servers physically focated in India on a daily basis {Refer Note 47 to the
financial statements).

The Balance Shest, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including Other Camprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreament with the relevant books of account,

In our opinfon, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 20273 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, are as stated In paragraph (b} above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contyols with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Cempany’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expianations given

to us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be induded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disciosed the impact of pending litigations on its flnancial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 (c) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracks for
which there were any material foreseeabie losses.
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fit. There has been nro delay in transferrlng amounts, reguired to be transferred, to the
1 Investor Educaklon and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in note 46(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or 1oaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person({s) or entlty{ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shail, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and bhelief,
as disclosed in note 46{vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(les), inciuding foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, fend or
invest in other persons or entities identified th any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or pravide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

]
i
g
i
i

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reascnable
: and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
; caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of

Ruie 1i(e), as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material
misstatement,

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
propased final dividend for the year.

vi, Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 fer maintaining baoks
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recerding audit trail (edit
log) facllity is applicabie to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordinaly,

reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicabte for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”} issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

for Deloitte Haskins & Salls
Chartered Accountants
i (Fira’s Registration No.008072S)

2L
shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

(Membership No. 210840}

; {UDIN: 23210840BGXLHES171)

Flace: Bangalore
i Date: May 29, 2023
SMG/AN/S2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITQR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1{g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

Wa have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Cyber Pearl
information Technology Park Private Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2023 in

conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
an Audit of Internal Finandal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indla. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
officient conduct of its business, induding adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of rellable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financiai
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the™Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guldance Nofe
reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perfarm the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in afl material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audlt evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financdial contrels with reference to financial statemants, assessing the risk
that & material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due te fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financtal Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controi with reference to financlal statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance wlith authorisations of
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management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, OF disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Becauce of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibiilty of coliusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Dpinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according te the expianations given to us, the
Company has, In ali material respects, adequate internal flnancial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financlal controls with reference to financial statements wete operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to
financial statements established by the Company considering the essential compaonents of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitie Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firmw's Registration No.0080725)

/‘
Shreedhar Ghanekar
Partner

{Membership No. 210840)
(UDIN; 232 10840BGXLHE171)

Place: Bangalecre
Date: May 29, 2023
SMG/AN/ 2023
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ANMEXURE B TO THE ENDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books

of account and records examined by us in the normai course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and beiief, we state that:

(i In respect of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets-

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i)
(a)

(b}

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars, including
quantitative details and situation of Propearty, Plant and Equipment, Capital work

in progress, investment properties and ralevant details of right of use assets.

As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause

3{X{B) of the Order is not applicable.

The Property, Plant and Equipment including capital work-in-progress, Investment
properties, Investment property under development and right-of-use assets were
physically verifizd during the year by the Management which, in our opinion, provides
for physical verification at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanatlons given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on our examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovabie properties, other
than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company disclosed in the financial

statements included in Investment property are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment including

Right of use assets during the year. The Company does not have any Intangible
assets. '

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Corapany as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder,

The inventories in tha nature of Stores, spares and fuel were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable Intervals. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verlfication by the Management, is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for

each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventeries when
compared wlth books of account.

According to the infermation and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or

financial institutions and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii){b) of the Order is not
applicable,
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{(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year and
details of which are given below!:

Particulars Loans including Non-
Canvertible Debentures
(Rs.in millions)
A, Aggregate amount provided during the year
- Others 597.00
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases*
- Qthers 597.00

* The amounts reported are gross amounts, without considering provisions made, if any.

{Refer Note 6 and 7 to the financial statements).

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during the

year.

(b) The investmenis made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of ali the above-mentioned foans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to
the Company's interest, except as stated in Note 32 to the flnanclal statements.

(€}

In respect of loans provided and advances in the nature of loans provided by the

Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been

stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are reguiar
as per stipulation except for the foliowing:

Name of | Nature Amount of | Due Date | Extent of j Remaris, if any
entity Interest delay as on
(Rs.in the March
millions) 31, 2023
Arshiya Principal and 287.00 | December 90 days Refer Note 32 to the
Northern | Interest 31, 2022 Financial Statements
FTWZ Accrued 16.82 | December 90 days
Limited {inciuding 33, 2022
applicable
taxes)
Phoenix Interest 0.10 | December 90 days The Company is
Infocity Accrued 31, 2022 currently in discussions
Private (including with the management of
Limited applicable PIPL far recovering these
(“PIPL™) taxes) amaounts.

{d) In respect of following loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided
by the Company,

which have been overdue for more than 90 days af the balance sheet date, as
explained to us, the

Management has talken reasonable steps for recovery of the princlpal amounts and
interest, as apptlicable;

No. of Cases | Principal Interest Total overdue Remarks, if any
amount overdue (Rs.int | {Rs.in millions)
overdue (Bs.in | millions)
mitligng ¢y
1 287.00 16.82 303.82 | Refer Mote 32 to the
Financlal Statements
2 - .10 0,10 | Company is currently in
discussions  with the
management of PIPL
for recovering these
amounts.
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(e) No loan or advance in the hature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f} According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
£ performaed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans

: either repayable on demand or without specifylng any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (iii}{f) is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and securities
provided, as appilcable.

) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3 {v) of the Order is not applicable,

{vi} The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

fvii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutery dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund,
income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs, duty of excise, Value added
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been
regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities. We have been informed

that the provisions of Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 are currently not
applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
Provident Fund, Income tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, Value added Tax, Cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they becarme payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to In sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

Statutes Nature of the | Forum where Dispute | Period to which Amount ]
Pues is pending the Amount | involved
relates (Rs. in
Millions)
Andhra Sales Tax  ° | High Court of Judicature | 2005-06 to 2007-08 6.77%
Pradesh VAT at Hyderabad for the
Act 2005 states of Andhra Pradesh
and Telangana
Commercial Tax Officer | 2008-09 5.402
{Assessing Officer)

The Company has filed | 200910 to 2016-11 *
the refund request letter
with the Commercial tax

R

i officer N
Commercial Tax Cfficer | 2011-12 to 2013-14 2.443
Finance Act | Sales Tax Customs Excise and | May 2015 to June 73.5M
1892 Service Tax Appeliate | 2017
Tribunal (CESTAT)
Income Tax | Income Tax Commissioner of Income | AY 2010-11 0.40
Act, 1961 Tax (Appeals)
L
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AY 2011-12 2.35%
AY 2013-14 38.95
AY 2015-16 97.43
AY 2017-18 il
AY 2018-19 *¥

Indian Stamp Duty The Inspector General of | March 2016 16,305

Stamp  Act Registration, Mylapere,

1899 Chennai

{viil)

(i)

(x)

1. Net of Rs. 5.36 million paid under protest
2. Net of Rs, 6,60 million paid under protest
3, Net of Rs. 0.35 million paid under protest
4, Net of Rs. 2.87 millicn paid under protest
5. Net of Rs. 44,98 million paid under protest

*Ag per show cause notices received for the period 2009-1Q ta 2010-11 demand is Rs. 1.77
million. The Company has paid Rs.12.5% Million under protest. The Company has filed the
refund request letter with the Commerciat tax offlcer.

**Ag ner the assessment order passed, assessed income has been increased by Rs. 29.49
million (potential tax Impact Rs. 10.20 miltion} and Rs. 21.38 million (potential tax impact

Rs. 7.40 million) for AY 2017-18 and 2018-19 respectively, The same Is adjusted against
brought forward losses and hence no demand raised/outstanding.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered

or disclosed as income in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
durtng the vear.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaufted in the repayment of loans or other
barrowings or in the payment of Interest thereon to any fender during the year.

{b)The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

{c} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised

term Ioans at  the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under ciause 3 (ix){c) of
the Order is not applicable,

{d)} On an overall examlnation of the financial statements of the Company, finds raised on

short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for lang-tarm purposes
by the Company.

(2) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or jolnt venture during the year
and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix){e) of the QOrder is not applicable,

(F} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

{a) The Company has not raised maneys by way of initial pubBe offer or further public offer

{including debt instruments)} during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicabte.
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(%)

$.4)]

(xili)

{xiv)

{xv)

{xwi)

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order Is not appilcable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Campany has bean noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, duting the year and
upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle biower complaints
raceived by the Company during the year {and upto the date of this report).

The Company is not a Nidhi Campany and hence reporting under clause (xif) of the Order
is not applicable,

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements ebc. as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicabie to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business,

[b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period until October 31, 2022, Based on information and explanatiens

provided to us, internal audit covering the balance period upto March 31, 2023 Is due in the
ensuing internal audit cycie.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company Is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi){a), (b) and (c) of the
Qrder Is not applicable.

(b) The Group {*Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions) does not have any CIC {Core Investment Company} as

part of the group and accordingly reporting under dause 3 {xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xvii} The Company has not incurred any cash losses In the financial year covered by our audit

and In the immaediately preceding financlal year,

{xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 44 te the Financial Statements, ageing -

!

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
Information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us te believe that any
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{(xx}

material uncertalnty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabifities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a peried of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that ail liabilities falling due within a periog of ene year from
the batance sheet date, wlli get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Respansibility
{CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year reguiring a transfer to 8 Fund
specified In Schedule VII te the Companles Act or special account in compiiance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3 () of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registyation No.008072S)

s <

Shrekdhar Ghanekar
Partner

(Membership No.210840)
UDIN; 23210840BGXLHESL7 1

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 28, 2023
SMGFAN/2023
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Cyber Penrl Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900TN2002PTC092624

Balance sheel ns at March 31, 2023

(ANl amannis are in Millions of Indian Rupees. unless olherwise stated)

Particulars

As al Asal
Motes March 31,2023 _March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-curvenl assels
Praperty, plont and equipment 3 683 909
Right-of-use assets 41a 4453 4742
Capital work in progress 41b - -
Investment property 42 1,382 92 1,342.83
In property under devel 4.3 ERE 14733
Goodwill 5 563 26 603,50
Financial nssels
Tnvestments 6 162 -
Other Minaneial assets 8 1994 41.10
Non-current tas nssels (net) 9 196,36 17000
Other non-curment assels 10 10.76 1479
1,281.83 137617
Currenl nysels
Inventories 1 446 5.22
Finaucial assets
lnvestments 6 100.00 -
Tiade receivables 12 2078 5.06
Cash and cash equivalents 13 699.39 RIER ]
Other balances with banks 14 - 810,00
Loans 7 210.00 -
Other financial assets 8 4189 1962
Other curment assets 1Q 139.77 19.83
1,216.69 1,208.71
Total assels 3.498,52 3,534,838
EQUITY AND LIADILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 18223 182.23
Other equity 16 1,248.55 1,380.88
1,430.78 1,563.11
LIABILITIES
Non-current Habilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,257.49 1,257.49
Lease Liabilities 4.la 56.82 57.05
Other financial liabilities 18 13288 5240
Provisions 2L 0.13 00
Deeferred tax liabilities (nex) 19 161.72 3.0
Othier non-current liabilities 20 11.90 6.51
Sub total 1620.94 1,476.64
Current linhilities
Financial liabilities
Lense liabilitics d1a 074 045
Trade payables 2
Total outstanding dues of micto enterprises and small enterprizes - 0235
Total outstanding dues of ereditors ather than micro enterprises and small 6445 63.05
Other financinl liabilities 18 281.55 39936
Other current habililies 20 2059 3.56
Current tax liabilities (net) 2 7345 7343
Provisions 2 0.02 001
446.30 545.13
Tolal equity and liabilities 349852 3,584.98
Summary of significant accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes form an integeal part of the financial stalements. 1-49
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Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900TN2002PTC099624

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended Maveh 31,2023
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

Particulavs Note FFor the year ended For the year ended
e March31,2093  March31,2022

Income

Revenue from eperations 24 786.94 735.69
Other income 25 6298 5133
Tatal income 849,92 787.02
Expenses

Employee benefits expense % 210 21
Finance costs 27 189.09 188.75
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 189,40 191,33
Other expenses 29 190.16 188.77
Total expenses 570.84 570,99
Profit / (loss) before exceptional item amd tax 279,08 216,03
Exceptional item 12 30382 -
Profit/ (loss) for the year before Tax (24.74) 216.03
Tax expenses

Current tax 19 96.14 86.56
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 11.45 (21.76)
Total tax expenses 107.59 64.80
Profit/ (loss) for the year (132.33) 151.23
Other comprehensive income

{i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit/loss “ -
(ii} Income tax refating (o items that will not be reclassified to profitiloss. - -
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year. = =
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year {132.33) 151.23
Earnings ! (loss) per equity shore [fice value of Rs.10 each (March 31, 2022 Ra:10)]

- Basic (Rs.) 33 (7.26) 8.30
- Diluted (Rs.) 33 (7.26) 8.30
Summary of significant accounting policies 23

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 1-19
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Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TNI002IMTC099524
Cashflow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are i Millions of Indimn Rupes, unless othgrnise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Marcl 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Operating activities
Profitf (loss) before tax (24.79) 216,03
Adjustients b reconcile profit before tas 1o net cashflows:
Exczptional item LU -
Depreciation on property, plant snd cquipment & ivestment property 1H9.13 1500
Amortization of goodwill J0.24 4024
Provision! (reversal) for bad and deubtful debrs (nzt af write off) oo {13in
Bad debt writien off uat [l |
Finance costs (neluding Gir value chiange in financinl instmments) (BT 188.75
Amortization of markeling fees included m investment property 1139 1202
{Gain) J Lass on sale of property; plant ad equipment’s (0.23) 06
Fimance incoime [(501) (5133)
Operating prefil before working eapital changes 60587 357,36
Warking capital adjustments due to Inerease [ {decrease) in:
Trade payables 113 (.14}
Qiher financial Babilitizs (1430 (LR 4]
Other liahilities 1742 (1.66)
Pravisions Dod -
[nventories 136 1+20
Trade receivables {15.69) 1306
Financial assels (629) 274
Orher asscts 24,75 1.59)
Cash generated from aperalions 49361 508.21
Income tax paid (et of refund) (73.23) 233
Net cagh Now from eperating activities (A) 42038 510.51
Investing activities
Purchase of praperty, plant and aquipment (n.94) (11}
Purchase of i propedy (inehid propety undur devel 1 advance and payables) {112.57) (144 29)
Tnvestments muds (48.08) -
Investments redeomed 447 -
Tnvestments in Mon Convertible Debentares (Lo ) -
Loans (49701} -
Interest received 4147 118
Investments in bank deposits - (L2100
Redemption { mamrity of bank depesits R1u.00 RO 6
Nel cash flows fromi{used) in investing activitics |B) 137.45 (413.89)
Finanging activities
Payment of principal portion of kease Rabditivs (o) (n.2n
Payment of interest portion of lease liabiities {373) (584)
Interest paid {171.63) (171.65)
Net eash Maws used in financing activities (C) (177.42) (177.76)
Nelincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3041 [LERTY]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe vear 313.08 4u109
Cash and cath equivalents at the end af the year 499,39 3898
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refr note 13)
Balanee with banks
On cutrent account 46,39 308
On il ACCatilt 65300 31500
Total cash and easl equivalents 699.39 31898
Reconcillatlon of liabilitles from financing activities
Particulars Asat Mareh 31, Proceeds Repayments  Fair Value Changes/ As at March 31, 2023
1012 Adjustments
Tamowings 125749 - - - 125749
Lease Liabilines 37.50 - {3.77) 533 5758
Total liabilities from ﬁm'ﬁ ﬂ‘i\'ﬁk‘l L314.59 - {311 343 1 ,!laﬂ?
Particulars As ot March 31, Proceeds Repayments Fair Value Changes/ As at March 31, 2022
w21 Adjustmants
Bormowings 1.257.49 - - - 125749
i 51.71 - (6.11) EXT 37.50
1,315.26 - [(NY)] 3.81 131499
=

Note: The abave cash flaw statrement has been prepared wnder the “Indireet Methed™ as setout in the Accoumting Standard (Tnd AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statemeris”

The acconipanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cyber Pearl Information Techmology Park Private Limited
CIN: UT2900TN2002PTC099624

Statement of changes in vquity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Mo of Shares Rs. in
in million millions
Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid
At Mareh 31, 2022 18.22 182.23
At March 31, 2023 18.22 182.23
b. Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Reserves and Suvplus Total
" Capital Genernl | Seeurities] Debenture Relained
Particulars : 2 ¥
redemplion | reserve | premium | redemption earnings
reserve reserve
As at April 1,2022 B5.00 10.71 88,45 10232 1,094.40 1,380.88
Profiv{Loss) for the year - - - - (132.33) (132.33)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) = = - i b =
Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss - - - 1.66 (1.66) -
As at March 31, 2023 A5.00 10.71 88.45 103.98 96041 1,248.55
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Reserves and Surplus Total
Parti Capital General | Securities| Dehenture Retained
articulars A 4 . .
redemption | reserve | premium | redemption earnings
reserve reserve
As at April 1, 2021 85.00 10,71 38.45/ 100.65) 944,84 1,229.65
Profit/{Loss) for the year - - - - 151.23 151.23
Other comprehensive income (nel of tax) - - - - - -
Amount transferred from surplus in the statement of profit and loss - - - 1.67 11.67) -
As at March 31, 2022 85.00 10.71 88.45 102.32 1,094.40 1,380.488
o
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial
statements. 1-49
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Cyber Penr] Information Teclmology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Maveh 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless ollienvise stated)

1

22
a)

I}

<)

Corporate Information !

Cyber Pearl Information Technology Pack Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a private limited I incory d under the provisions of the
Companics Act 1956 and is primacily engaged in the business of developing, operating and maitaining Industrial Parks and incidental and associated
activities. The I derives hrough the lease of the developed aren to enterprises cngaged in information technology and information
technology enabled services in Chennai and Hyderabad.

Parsunmnt to the approval of the Scl of Amnlgamation | the Company and Ascendas IT SEZ (Chennai) Private Limited and their respective
hareholders and creditors ("the scheme™) by H ble High Court of Madras on 30th June 2015, Ascendas 1T SEZ (Chennai) Pavate Limited has

amalgamated with the Company with effect from March 31, 2015 (the Appointed Dote'). The High Court arder was filed with the Registrar of Campanies
on August 10, 2015 (the “Effective date™) {Refer nate 36).

The financial statements are approved {or issue-by the Company's Board of Directors on May 29, 2023

Significant accounting policies
Basis of prepavation

The fi | stat ts are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

The £ Tl ts are | ted in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.
Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assels and linbilities in the balance sheet based on currant/ non-current elossification, An asset is treated as current when it is:
P Expected Lo be realized or intended to be sald or ¢ d in normal operating cycle

P Held primarily for the purpose of trading

P Expected to he realized within twelve months afler the reporting periad, or

¥ Cash ar cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or uscd to settle a linbility Tor at least bwelve months afler the reporting period
All other nssels are classified as non-cument.

A liability is current when:

¥ 1t is expected to be settled in nonual operating cycle

¥ 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading

» ILis due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting periad, o1

B There is no uncondilional right o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-eurrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The eperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for p ing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identificd twelve months as ils operating cycle.

Praperty, plant & equipment

Propetty. plant & equipment are stated at their cost of aequisition/ uction, net of a lated deprecintion and impaimment losses, if any. The cost
compriscs purchase price, b ing costs if capitalization eriteria are met, direetly altributable cost of bringing the asscl to its working condition for the
intended use and initia] estimate of d issioni ing and similar liabifities. Each pact of an item of property, plant and equi with a cost

that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applics mainly o components for plant and equipment. When

“significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when o majov inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying anount of the plant and equig as a repl tifthe
recognition criterin are satisfied. All other repair and mai cosls are e ized in profit ar loss ns incurred,

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment arz added ta its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously d lard of perf

An item of property, plant and equipment and any signiticant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benelits
are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or Inss arising en derceognition of the asset (¢ lculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statenent when the property, plant and equipment is derecognized.

(Cost of assels not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Investnent praperlies

properties are d initiolly at cost, inchudi tion costs. Subsequent to initial vecognition, investment properties are staled at cast
less accumulated deprecintion and accumulated impaimment loss, iFany.
The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for lang-term fion projects if the recognition eriteria are mel. When signilicant
parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at infervals, the Company depreciates them separt ly based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and mai < costs are recopnized in profit or loss as incurred.
The Company depreciates building comy t of investnent propenty over 30 years from the date of original purchasz The management believes that

{hese estimated usefil lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assels are likely to be used. luvestment properties are
derecopnised either when they bave been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future econamic benefit is expected from

their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the eamying amount of the assel is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.




Cyber Pearl Information Technology Fark Private Limited

CIN: U72000TN2002PTC099624

Nates fo the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2023
(Al 1s are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwisc stated)

d) Deprecintion

——

N —

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates amived at, based on the useful lives esti d by the t
The useful lives esti | by the management are given below:
Calegory of Asset Lsti | useful life (yenrs;
Investment Property
Leaschold land 99
Buildings 30
Plant and equipment 135
Electrical Tnstallation 1
Fitouts and fxtures 10
Propeity, plant and equipment
Furniture and fixtures 10
Comy and office equiy 1 3-5
The residual values, nseful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equiy and ir propeity are reviewed at cach financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropri
¢) Revenue Recognition
Revenue ftom ¢ 15 with 15 is recoguized when control of the goods or services are transfemed o the ¢ at an 1 that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, Revenue is measured based on the Iransaction price,
which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other eredits, iCany, as specified in the contract with the . The Company p
from contracts with cust net of indirect taxes in it stat t of profit and loss,

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract thal are separate performance obligations to whicli a portion of the transaction
price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company cansiders the ¢ffects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
fi i 1s. nan-cash and consid ble Lo the cust (if any).

The specific recognition eriteria described below must also e met before revenue is recagmized.

Renlal income receivable under operating leases {excluding vevenue share ts) is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis
aver tie term of the lease lock in perind.

Rental income under operating leases having revenue share anangements is recognized as per the teims of the contract.
Operations, maintenance and utilities income is recomized on rendering of services as per the tenms of the contract.
Car park income includes revenue camed from the opemtions ofthe parking facilities, whicl is recogized when the services ace rendered,

Titerest income, including income arising from other i ial i 15, is recognized using Uhe effective interest rate method.

Contract Balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services trnsferred to the eustomer. I the Company perfarms by transfeiring goods

or services o a batore the pays ideration or before payment is due, a contract assct is recognized for the carned consideration that
is conditional.

Trade reczivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is duc)

Coniract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services (o a customer for which tile Company has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. Contracts in which the goods or services transferred are lower than the amount billed to the customer, the

difference is recognized as "l | e "and g | in the Bal Sheet under "Other current liabilities".

Contracl cost nssels

The Company pays sales ission for Usat they obtain to sell cenain units of propeity and capitali the ine | costs of obtaining a
contract. These costs are amortized on a syslematic basis that is consistent with the transter of the property to the customer. Capilalized costs to obtain
such are | ted sey ly as a current asset in the Balance Shecel.

N Impaivinent of assels

(i) Non-Financial Assets
The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assat may be impaired. IT any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an assel is required, the Comy i the asset’s reeoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined Tor an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that ave largely independent of those from other assels ar groups of nssets. When the canying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 1o its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refleets current market
assessments of (e time value of money and the risks speeific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposnl, recent market lransaclions are
wken into account. 1F no such tmnsactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These ealculations are borated by val
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impainnent losses, including impainnent on iy ies, are recognized in the si L of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on
{he revised caying amount of the Assel over its remaining useful life,

CHAINERED 1™
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Cyber Pearl Information Technology Parl Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTC099624

Naotes to the financial statements for the yemr ended Mareh 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

f

Tmpaivment of assets (continued...)

(i) Financial Assets (other than at Fair value)

)

The Company assesses al each date of bal sheet whether a fi | asset or o group of financial assets is impaired, Ind AS 109 requires expected
credit losses 1o be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime d losses for all contract assels and [ or all (rade
veceivables that do not constitute a Gnancing laansaction, For all other financial assets, expectad eredit losses are measured al an amount cqual to the 12-
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses i€ the credit risk on the 6 ial
significantly since initial recognition.

asset has i d

Leases

Company as a lessee {Applicable with effective from Apnl 01, 2019)

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assels. The
Company recagnizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-ot-use assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured Al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impainuent losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The costof
right-ofuse assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incwred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-ofuse assets are depreciated on a straip}
the estimated useful lives of the assels.

line basis over the shorter af the lease tevm and

e vight-of-use assets are also subject to impaiment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (f) Inpainnent of non-financial asscts.
(ii) Lense Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company ncognms lease linbilities measured at the present value of lease paynients to be made over the
lease termh. The lense pay include Tixed § ts (i g insul fixed 1

) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, :lml amuunts expected to be paid under rcmdual value guarantees. The lease pryments also include the
excreise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalites (or tenminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option 1o tenminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expenses in the period in which the event or condition that inggers the payment occurs

In calculating Ui present value of lease payments, the Company uses its i tal borrowing rte at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 1 date, the of lease liabilities is increased 1o veflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the caurying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured it there is a modifieation, a change in
tlie lease term, a change in (he lease payments (.., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to detenming such lease
payments) or a change in the asseéssment of an option to purehase the underlying asset.

(iii) Shovt-term lenses and leases of low-value nssels

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment {i.e., thase leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Tt also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition

exenplion to leases of office equipment that are idered to be low value, Lease payments on short-tenm lenses and leases of lows-value assets are
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tem.

Company os u lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are elassified as aperating lenses. Rental

income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis aver the tem of the relevant lense. Initial direct costs inewred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the canying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term an the same basis as rental income

Borrawing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiti ion or praduction of an asset thal ily tnkes a substantial period of ime o gel
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as puit of the cost of the asset. All olher borrowing cosls are expensed in the period in which they oceur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrawing of funds.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency (ransactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the year end, all the monetay assets and
liabililies denominated in forcign y are restated at the closing exclionge rales. Exehange difTe ing from the setilement of such
transactions and from the Jation of such y assets and liabilitics are recognized in the statement of profit and less.
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Notes 1o the financind statements for the year ended Maveh 31, 2013
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Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability ar equity instrument of another entity.

Finaneiul msets

Initial recognition and measurement

All Tinancia) asscls are reeognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value Uireugh profit or lass, transnclion
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of [inancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame

established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on tie trade datg, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to prrchase or sell the ossel.

Subsequent measurement
For

purg of subsequent , financial nssets are classified in four categories:

Delit instruments at amortized cost

Dbt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equily instruments at faic value through profit or loss (F VIPL)
Equity instruments measured al fair value through ather hensive income (FYTOCL)

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debl instrument” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is hield within a business model whose objeclive is to hold assels for collecting contractual cash Nows, and

1) Contractual tevms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Afier initial , such fi inl nssets ore subsequently 1 at amortized cost nsing the
fTective i rate (EIR)

f thod. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium o acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR_ The EIR amortizalion is included in fi in the profi or loss. The losses arising from impainnent are recognized in
tlie profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, s put of a financial asset or part of o Company of similor financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

P The rights 10 receive cash Nows from the asset have expired, or

¥ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from (he assel or lias assumed an cbligation to pay the reccived cash fows in full without
material delay to a third party under a *pass-throngh® amangement; and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of

the asset, or (b) the Company has neither ansferred nov retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the asset, bt has transterred conlrol of the
asset,

When the Company lias lansferred its vghts o receive cash ows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through armangement, it evaluates it and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Wihen it has neither ferred nor retained suk ially all of the risks and rewards of the
assel, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company conlinues 1o recognize the transferved asset to the extent of the Company’s comlinuing

involvement. Tn that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transteied assel and the associnted liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Finaneial Habilittes
Initi it measurerent

Financial liabilitics are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liobilities at fair valuc through profit or loss, loans and baorrowings, or as payables, as
appropriate.

The Company’s fi ial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classitication, us described below:

Loans aud borrowings

This is the category mast relevant o the Company. After initial iton, i t-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method Gains and losses are recognized in profit or lass when the liabilities are derecognized ns well as through the EIR
amartizalion process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into L awy di or premium on ncquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ol the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statentent of profit and loss.
A financial liability is derecopnized when the obligation under the libility is discharged or cancelled ar expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by anather fiom the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially maodified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difterence in the respeetive
canying 15 s recogmized in the nt of profit or loss,
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Cyher Pear] Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2000TN2002PTC099624

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended Maveh 31, 2023
{All amounts arc in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1) Fair value of financial instruments
I determining the fair value of its financial ts, the Company uscs following hierarchy and
risks existing at each reporting date.
Fair value hicrarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the linancial statements are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described
as Follows, based on e lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair value measurement as a whale:
> Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
B Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the faic valuc measurement is directly or indirectly observable
B Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to e Fair value measurement is imobzervable

that are bascd on market conditions and

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial on a recurring basis, the Comp | i helher transfers have |
[ leyvels in the i hy by ¢ ing cateporization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole)
at the end of each reporting periad.

1)  Taxcs
Curremi income fax
Current income tax for the current and prior periads are 1 at the expecled to be d from or paid to the taxation authorities based
an (he taxable income for that peried. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute e anount are those (hat are enacted or substantively enacted by ihe
balance sheet date.
Deferred income tax
Defered income tax is gnived uging the bal sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on lemporary difl at the bal sheet date

between the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reparting purposes, excepl when the deferved income tax arises
fiam the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or linbility in a trmnsaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nar
txable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. .

Deferred income tax assels are recognized for all deductible wemporary differences, cany torward of unused tax credits and winsed tax losses, to the

extent that it is probable that faxable profit will be available against which ke deductible temporary difTerences, and the cany forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax Josses can be wilized.

In the situations where the Company is entitled ta o tax holiday under the | tax Act, 1961, no deferved tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect
of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the Company’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during tie

tax lioliday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax holiday perod is recognized in the year in which the timing
differences originate.

Defarred income tax assets and ligbilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
sattled, based on tax rates (aud tax laws) that have heen | or sul ively d at the balance sheat date.

The canying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance gheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avaifable to allow all or part of the deterred income tax asset to be utilized.

Minimum Altemative Tax (MAT) may become payable when the taxable prafit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a
set ofl against regular corp tax payable in subsequent years, as per the provisions of Income Tax Acl. MAT paid in a yearis changed 1o the statement
of profit and loss as curvent tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an assel only Lo the extent that there is convineing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income lax during the specified period, i.c.. the period for which MAT eredit is allowed 10 be carmied forwird. In the year in
which the Company recoguizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the G id Note on A ing for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement™ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does
not have convincing evidence that it will pay nonal tax during the specified period.

m) Employee Benefits
Shart tera emplayee henefirs:
All cmployee benetits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classificd as shart term employee benefits, which include

benefits like salaries, shot leom pensated al perdi incentives, etc. and are recognized as expense in the period in which the employee
renders the related seivice.

Defined-cantribuion plans:

The Company has defined contrbution plans (where Company pays p dafined and does not bave any legal or infonnal obligation (o pay
additional sums) for post employment henefits (viz., provident fund), and the Company's contributions thereto are charged 1o the statement of profit and
loss every year.

Defined-benefit plans:

The Compmiy has a defined benefit plan (viz, Gratuity) for employees, the liability for which is determined on the basis of valuation emried out by an
independent actuary (under projected unit credit method) at the balance sheet date,

Ouher bang tenn employee benefiis:

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-tenn employee benefit. The Company measures the

expected cost of such ak as the additional that it ts to pay as a vesult of the unnsed emitl i that has lated at the ti
date.
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Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Frivate Limited
CIN: U72900TN2002PTCO99624
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended Mavch 31, 2023

(Al

15 are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othenvise stated)

n)

o)

m

Remensurciments, compnsmg ut’ actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in et interest on the net defined

benefit liability, are liately in tic bal sheet with a comesponding debit or credit 1o retained camings through OC1 in the period in
which they oceur. R t5 are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

The Company Weats lated leave expected to be cammed forward beyond twelve ths, as long-t ployee benefil for mensurement purposes.
Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based an the ial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. “The
Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheel, since it does not have an unconditionnl right to defer its setthement for lwelve
months afier the reporting date. Actuarial gains/ losses are i diately taken to ( of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Provisions and Contingent Linhilities

A provision is recogized when an enterprise has a preseut obligation (legal or construelive) as vesult of past event und it is probable that an outflow of
embodying econemic benefils of resowrces will be required to settle n reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate
required to setile each obligation at each balance sheet date. IEthe effect of the time value of mouey is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recagnized as a finance cost.

A eontingent liability is a possible obligati

that arises from past events whose existenee will be confined by the neeurrence or non-nccurence of oie
or more uncerlain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow
ol resources will be required to scttle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases wh:re there is a halnlny that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does nol recognize a contingent liability but discl ils
statements

¢ in the ial

Enrnings per Shave

Basic cammings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 1
of cquity shares oulstanding during the period. Earnings considered i ascerlaining the Company’s camings per share is the net protit for the pcnnd alier
deducting preference dividends aud any atributable fax thereto For the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dwing the
peried and for all periods presented is adjusted for evenls, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, thal have changed
the number of equity shares ding, without a ding change in

For the purpose of caleulnting diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareloldars and the weighted average
ber of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potewtial equity shares.

Inventorics
Inventories cansist of operational stores and fuel which are valued at lawer ef weighted average costand net reatizable value which ever is lower.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Campany recognizes a linbility to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is
1o lorger at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim
dividends are recorded as a linbility on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

Recent pronouncement

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies {Indian A ing Standards) A dment Rules, 2023, This
notification has resulted into amendments in the following existi i laxds which are applicable to the Cy y frome Al 1, 2023,

i, Iud AS 101 = First time adoption of Ind AS
ii. Ind AS 102 - Share-based payment
iii. Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations
iv. Ind AS 107 - Financial Instr 15: Disclosures
v. Ind AS 109 - I inancial lnstuments
vi. Ind AS 115- nue from C with Cy
vii. Ind AS | — P ion of Fi inl Stat I
viii.Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Civors
% lnd AS 12 — Income Taxes
% Ind AS 3 - lnterim Financial Reporting
“The Company ig in the process of evaluating the inpact of'the above Iments on e Company's linancial st 1
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CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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Property, plant & equipnient®

Particulars Computers
Furniture and

and Office Fixtures Tatal

Equipment )
Gross earrying value
Dalance as at Apyil 01, 2021 10.55 477 1532
Additions 1.64 - 164
Deletions {0.53) (.67) (5.20)
At March 31,2022 11.66 0.10 11.76
Additions 0,94 - 0.94
Deletions - - -
Adjustments/Disposals*® 0.53 1,67 3.20
At Maveh 31, 2023 13.13 4.77 17.90
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 1.88 an 5.60
Charge for the year 1.85 042 227
Disposals (1.16) (4.04) (5.20)
At Mareh 31, 2022 2.57 0,10 .67
Charge for the year 320 - 320
Disposals - - -
Adjustments/Disposals** 0.53 4.67 3.20
Ad March 31, 2023 6.30 4.17 1107
Net Dlock
As at Mareh 31, 2022 9.09 (0.00) 2.09
As atMarvch 31, 2023 6.83 - 6,83

#Owned unless otherwise statad.

**The Management, during the year reviewed the gross black and accumulated depreciation across various classes of assets and caried oul adjustments
amounting to Rs. 5.20 million. The impact on the net baok value as a result of the saidd adjustments is Mil,

Leases

The company has lease contrac for a solar power project used in ils operations. The term of the lease is for 20 years. The company’s obligations under its
lease are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assels. The company applies the “short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assels’ recognition excmplions
for the leases.

Set out Lelow ave the carrying amounts of right-oF-use assets recognized and the movenients during the period:

Plant &
Machinery i
As at April 01, 2021 50,36 50.36
Additions - -
Depreciation expenses (2.94) (2.94)
As at April 01, 2022 4742 4742
Additions - -
Depreciation expenses (2.89) (2.89)
As at March 31, 2023 44,53 44.33
Sel aut below are the cavrying amonnts of Lease linbilities and the movements during the perind:
Asat April 01, 2021 5177
Additions -
Aceretion on interast 384
Payments {6.11)
Asat April 01,2022 57.50
Additions -
MAcerelion on mterest in
Paynients (3.67)
Asat varch 31, 2023 57.56
Maveh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Mon eurrent lease liability 56,82 3105
Curvent lease lability 0.74 0435

jﬁ 57.50

‘The following ave the amount recognized in profit or loss:

Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation charge on right of use assel 291

29
| Interest expense on Lease liabililies 373 5.84
T 3.64 .78
|
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Cyher Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: U72000TN2Z002PTC099624

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

Statement of eash Mows

March 31, 2023 Mlarch 31, 2022
Cash cutflow for leases - towards principal 0.04 027
Cash outflow for leases - towards intecest 5.73 5.84
4.1 b Capital worlein progress
Capital wark in
rogress
As at April 01, 2021 -
Additions 1.64
Capitalized during the year (1.64)
As at March 31, 2022 -
Additions 094
Capitalized during the year (0.94)
As at March 31, 2023 -
4,2 Investment properly
Other assets forming part of Building®
Freehold Lensehold e
Tatal
land* land - Plant and Electrical Fitouts and
cquipment Installation fixtures
Cost
As at April 01,2021 55,75 49.76 1,635.34 327.20 69.09 0.89 2,147.03
Additions - - 32.70 3891 5.7 - 76.78
Disposals - = - (20.1T) - - (20.17)
At March 31, 2022 55.75 49.76 1,668.04 345.94 T4.26 9.89 2,203.64
Additions - - 104.04 731 - - 177.15
Disposals " 4 ¥ (291) - - 291y
Adj Mispasals*® 50.28 50,28
At Mareh 31,2023 55,75 49,76 1,772.08 466,42 74.26 9.89 2,428.16
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 - 180 477.89 198,48 58,87 9.89 747.93
Charge for the year - 0.56 101.63 42.28 141 - 145.88
Disposals - - - (19.99) - - (19.99)
At Mareh 31, 2022 - 3.36 570,51 220.77 60,28 9.3 §73.82
Cliarge for the year 0.356 10896 3219 141 143.12
Disposals - - - (1.74) - - (1.7
Adjustments/Disposals*® 50.28 50.28
At March 31, 2023 - 3.9 68548 301.50 6169 2.89 1,065.48
Add: Unamortized initial divect costs incurred in negotiating and avrauging an operating lease
As at Mareh 31, 2022 13.01
Asal March 31, 2023 2024
Met Bloek
As at Mareh 3, 1022 55.75 6,40 1,088.52 125.17 13,98 - 1,342,83
As at Mareh 31, 2023 55.75 45.84 1,083.60 164.92 12.57 - 1,382.92

*Owned unless otherwise stated,

#1The Management, during the year reviewed the gross block and accumulated depreciation across various classes ol'assets and cani

amounting to Rs. 30.28 million. The impact on the net book value as a vesult of the said adjustments is Nil.

Tuformation vegavding i and diture of inv projevly.

Reutal income derived from investment propedies

Direct « 1 {including repairs and maint ) g ting rental @
I B exj P

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) not generaling rental income

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indivect expenses

Less- Depreciation
Profit avising from investment properties before indiveet expenses

As at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 202

Lud

Fair value hierarehy for i 1 propertics hiave been providad in Note 43

The fair value of investment properties are primarily based on average of fair values under di

("ICM") and classified os level 3 fair vahue in the fair value hicrarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, There has been no ¢
Sice prior years.

e
=
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ed oul adjustments

March 31,2023 Muarch 31, 2022
786.94 135,69
{185.55) (183.95)
(4.61) (4.82)
506,74 546.92
{143.12) (145.88)
453,66 40104

2, the fair values of the properties are [ts.8.246 million {as per valuation dated December 31, 2022) and Rs,7.941 million (as

per valuation dated December 31, 2021) respectively. These valuations are based on valuations perfarmed by accredited independent valuers - CBRE South Asia Pyt

lod ("DCM") and income capitalization method
hange in valuation technigues used
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Cyber Pear] Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTC099624

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

(All amounts ave in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othernvise stated)

Deseription of i Ini used and key inputs to valuation on investiient properties:
In Prapertics ey Inpuis March 31, 2023 Mavel 31, 2022
Office Properties Estimated monthly rental per square feet (psf) Rs. 3710 63 Rs. 3610 62
Rent growil rate 2.50% to 5.00% 3.85% 10 4.77%
Discount rate 11.53% 11.53%
Vacaney rate 2.50% to 5.00% 2.50% to 5.00%
Capilalization rate §.50% 8.50%
In T Capitalization Method, an overall capilalization rate is apy licd to a rey tative single period income to arrive at the value of the subject propesty. In
Discounted Cashilow Method, a discaunt rate is applied to a series of cash flows for future periods o discount them to arrive at the present value of the subject
praperly.
The Company has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment propertics and no contractual eblig op . Lor d P inv
propertics.
4.3 Investment property wnder development
Investment property
unier development
Asat April 01, 2021 7175
Additions 152.36
Capitalized during the year 76.78)
As it March 31, 2022 147,33
Additions 6570
Capitalized during the year {179.42)
As at March 31, 2023 3161
Tnvestment property under development Ageing Schedule
As at 31 Mareh 2023;
Amount in IPUD fov a pevied of
Partieulars Less 1-2 2-1 yenrs Maore Totl
than | years than 3
Prajects in progress 3097 264 - - 33.61
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Tatal 30.97 2.64 - - 3161
As at 31 March 20223
Amount in IPUD for a peviod of
Particulars Less 1-2 2-3 years Mare Tatal
than | years than 3
Projects in progress 118.01 27.99 1.33 - 147.33
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Tatal 118.01 27.99 1.33 - 147.33




Cyher Pear] Infovmation Technology Pavle Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624

Notes ta the financial statements for the yenr ended Mareh 31, 2023
(AN amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

35 Gondwill (Iefer note 36)

Guadwill
Gross Bloch
As al April 01, 2022 B44.04
As at March 31,2023 24094
Amortization o
Asal April 01, 2022 24144
-Amortizalion 40.24
As at March 31,2023 2181.68
NMel Block
As at Mareh 31,2022 603,50
As at March 31,2023 S63.26

Tmpairment testing of goodwill
The Company performed its anunal impaimient test for years ended March 31, 2023 and Mareh 31, 2022, Goodwill acquired in amalgamation is tested for
impairment at entity level.

The recaverable amount of a Cash Generating Unit (CGUY) is the higher ofits fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. For computing the fair value, the
carrying amount of various assats other than investmient property, property, plant and equipment and inventory is treated as fir value. In cise of investment
property, property, plant and equipment and jnventory, the fair value is nssessed on (he basis of Income Capitalization and Discounted Cash Flow Methad.
Tlie income eapitalisation approach involves capitalizing single year nel i timated by an appropriate market based yield This methodology uses
market derived plions, includi pitalizalion rates. In case of di 1 cush NMows method, the prajected cash flows ave discounted at an appropriate
discount rate o amive at the present value of the propeity. The discount rate considered for sueh discounting is based on the weighted-average cost of capital
speeifie to the CGU. The key ions used For (he calculations are as follows:

(iy Property details comprising of total leasable/ saleable aven, area acally leased! sold, vacant arca ete.;

{ii) Revenue assumplions comprising of macket rent, market sale price, growili rate, market lease tenure, market escal i arcy mai e
income prevailing in the market ete.

(iii} Cost assumptions comprising of brokerage cost, transaction cost on sale, tion cost, cost esealationz et

(iv) Di i pli prising of inal cop rate and discount rate of 8,50% and 11.53% (Marcl 31, 2022; 8.50% and 11.53%); and

(v) Estimated cash flows fiom lease rentals, operuti and maint i sale af canstructed properties ete. for the future years

As at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the estimated rec b of the CGU exceeded its camying amounts. Accordingly, no impaimment of
goodwill have been recorded in statement of profit and loss. Manag t beli that any ble possilile changes in the projected fnancial budgets and
otlier assumptions weuld not cause the canying amount o exceed the recoverable of the cash ting unit.




Cylier Pearl Tnformation Teclnology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2000TN2002P 1C099624

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Millians of Indian Rupees, unless oiherwize stated)

6 Tovestmenls

Monr-curvent Curvent
Equity (Unguoted) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
500 (March 31, 2022: 500) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully
paid in Ascendas Gives Foundation 001 ool - -
360,600 (March 31, 2022 Mil ) equity shares of s, 10 cach
fully paid in Pollax Solar Solulions Private Limited 161 - - -
| i Delentures {Unguated)
| 1 1,000,000 (March 31, 2022 Nil ) 12 25% secured ved ble s ible del of
I s 100 ¢ach Gully paid up in Phoenix Infocity Private Lindled - - 10000 -
1 3.62 0.01 100,00 .
| 7 Loans Mon=current Curvemt
1 AMarch 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Inter Corporate Deposit to related paities (Uinsecured. considered good) [Note A] - - 110.00 -
Inter Corporate Deposit fo others (L d, considered credil impaived) [ Note 8] - - 287,00
Less: Provision for lpainnent - - (287.00)
[" - . 21000 -
i Note A; Company made Inter Carporate Deposit anounting to Rs. 210 Million cut of the planned investments of Rs. 240 million with Pellax Solas Solutians Private Limited dirough an
1 agreement dated March 08, 2023, Pollax is ¢ngaved in e busi of g e accumulating, distributing and supplying solar eneray, Interest is payable @ 1% paon quarterly basis
£ from the data of dishursement. Tenure of the deposit shall bz one year fiom the date of disbursernant or any earlicr date as mutually agreed between parties. Campany tianeferred ihe funds
| i on March 23,2023
| |

Mate Bz The Company made [nter corporate deposits (“ICD") amounting to Rs. 287 million out of the planned investments of Rs. 300 million with Arshiya Northen FIWZ Limited
| (=~ AMFL™) theough an agreerent dated May 31, 2022, ANFL is engaged in renderi hausing develop and related services o various customers. As per the
agreement, these funds will be utilized for the repayment of loans and for general corp purp The ICD provided will Ily be set off azginst the gross purchase consideation
althe properties. The rmte of interest is 14% p.a payable until repaymient of loan. Interest will Le accrsed till Decenber 11, 2022 and will be adjusted against the gross puschase
consideration. The Company transferned the funds for 1€D in several tranches during Jue’ 22 and July' 22 This 1CD) is secured on Khuga FTWE Land and Khurja Wacehouse property held
by ANEL, hypathecation of all develop hip, leaschold tights and ather rigts and benefits in respect of the Mortgaged properties including but not limited 1o (he consideration
recaivahia by ANFL such as lease rentals, parking inconme, any other income, operation and mal charges, nfi charges, sale considaration, depesitpremium,
business centra fees, licanse fees, rent outstanding, elninis, present and future Dook debits, outstanding moneys receivable, claims, bills, insurance proceeds, Bank aceounts, designated bank
aceount, which are now due and owing to due ot any lime and 2 corporate guarantes From Arshiya Limited, lhe parent entity of ANFL. Alen refer Nota 32,

| 8  Ovher financial assels

Non-current Cuvrent
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 Marel 31, 2023 Aarch 31, 2022

Unibvilled ravenus

| - - A ) 19.48
"; Interest accred an deposits (net of provision of Rs. 15.13 Millions ( March 31, 2022 Nily} - - 16,12 1014
1 Securily Deposits 3984 41,10 - -
-: 3994 41,40 4139 19.61
1 ':': Breal up of financinl assels carried at amortized cos! Maveh 31,2023 March 31,2022
i Investments (rate 6) 103,62 -
i Loans {note T) 210,00 <
i Other financial assets (note 3) i1.83 70,72
| Trade receivables (note 12) 20,78 5.06
| 41623 75.78
|
4 9 Nan-current tax assets (nel) Mavch 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022
i Mon-current tax (net of provision for 1ax Rs. 122 42 millions 19636 17011
(Rs 27033 as on March 31, 2022))
‘ || 196,36 17011
1 10 Other assels
Non-curvent Cuvent

March 31,2023 Mavch 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 1022

Unamartized expeniimre

i Rent free penod 1076 1479 [ 9.14
| Others
| Capilal Advance - - - 149
i Advance to vendors - - 1635 811
Stall advance - - 002 0.02
Trepaid expanzes - - 534 .01
i Balanees with statutory / g  authariti - - 139 11.88
i Other Receivables’ - - 100,02 0.8
10.76 14.79 139.77 39.83
i

i + Ascendas Propeny Fund (India) Pre., Ll (APHL), the Paren! entity of the Compuny igned the ngis and obligations over the RFP (Request for Proposal) for Engineenng. Procorenent
g and Construgtion wosks (EPC) for 21 MW solar project to be developed in Tuticosin which would be housed within the Company. Prozeal Infra Enginceting Pyt Ltd (EPC Contractor)

: was seleeted and Letter of Award was executed. The Campany paid a Mobilisation advance of Itz 100 Million against a Bank guarantze to the EPC Contractor lowands pracurement of

‘ aterials Subsequently the Parent decided to house the Solar Project in a separale company vz Pollax Solar Solutions Private Ld ("Pallax®), in which the Company has a 6% equity siake
|

a3 at March 31, 2023, The Company has accordingly recoverad an amourt of Rs 50 Million against supplies made by the EPC contractor o Pollax The balance amount is recoverad on
May 29, 2023,
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Cylier Pearl Infarmation Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624

Nates to the financial statements for ihe year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(A1l amounts are it Millions of Indizn Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

11 Baventories (valued at lower of ¢ost ani net realizable value)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Stores, spares and fuel 4.86 522

4.86 521

12 Teade veecivahles

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Oher than Related Parties 20748 5.06
20.78 506
1
JI Break-up of Trade receivaliles
1 Man-curvenl Current
1

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

—

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered goad
Credit impaired

& . 1852 132
- - 226 M
- - 2.26 132§
- - 2304 741
- - (2.26) (2.25)
20.78 508

Impairmaent allawanca
Total

Mo trade ar other receivabile are due from dinectors or eiier officers ef tha company eillier severally or jointly with any other paison. Nor any wade or oihes receivable are due from firaws or
private comypanies recpectively in which any director is a pariner, a directar o1 a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest hearing and are generally on terms of 710 15 days.

Trade Receivables{ Cantinued)

a. Details of provision far Impainment is as below: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

———

e e e N
.
0

Dialance at the baginning of the year

e e e s

225 A5G

Add: Provision made during the year 0.0l -

Less: Revarsal of cxpectad eredit lnss £ (L31)
i Balance al Uie beginning of the yzar 226 2.25

b, Ageing Schedule of Trade Receivabl
Asat March 31,2023
Qutstanding for the following periods from Due date
Vartieulars Mok Dl Lessthan6  Gionths-1 12 years 23years Nare than 3 Tatal
manths year years

Asat March 31,2023

Undigputed Trade receivables - Considered good - 16.69 22 033 0.53 .96 078

i d Trade Receivables - credit impaired - am 0417 0.0% - - 226

Asat harch 31, 2022
i Undisputed Trade receivables - Considered good - 501 & : 0.08 2 5.06
i Urdisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - Lz 0as 035 022 041 125
1._ 13 Cash and eash equivalents
1 March 31, 2023 Mauch 31,2022
il Blances with banks:
i ~ (i currem accounts 46,39 308
E — Dzpaosits* 653.00 315.00
1 699.39 11893
] *Represents sweep facility
i Far the purpose of the statement of cash (lows, eash aml eash equivalents comprise the follawing:
‘ March 31,2033 March 31, 2022
! | Halances wilh banks.
| — On currenil accounts 4639 Jos
| ~ Depasits with 1ess than three manths maturity 653.00 315.00
! 699,39 318.98
‘ 14 Other Balances with bank
l; Mon-current Curvent
] March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2021
i Balunces with banks:
1

~ Depasits with matwity for mare than

- - - 810,00
e months but less than twelve momhs
. - - A10.00
(2) Short-term depasits are made for vaying periods of betweea three momhs 1 twelve months, dependiyg an the i diste eash requi ts af the Comprany, and eain interest at the

respective shart-Lerm deposit rates.

Fhiis speee s been inteniionally bl blank
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Cylier Pear Information 'Technology Parlt Private Limited

CIN: U72900TN20021 T CO99624

Motes to the Nnancial statements for the yem ended Mareh 31, 2023
(Al are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless ollienwise stated)

15 Sharve capital

Autharized share eapital Equity Shaves Cunubative Red hie P
; Sharves
] Na.in millian  Bs, in millions Mo. in millisn Rs. in millions
| ArMarch 31,2011 3600 360,00 151 150,90
! Increasefdecrense) during the year A » = ”
At March 31, 2012 36.00 360,00 1.51 150,90
Increase/{dcerense) during the year - - 5 "
AtMarch 31, 2023 3600 360,00 1.51 150.90
i Authorized share capital inchudes the equity and preference share capital af Ascendas IT SEZ (Chennai) Private Limited which was merged vath Cyber Peal Information Techoology Park
| Puivate Limited during the year ended March 31, 2016 {Refer nole 36)

Issued, subsevibied and folly paid-up shave capital

Equily Shaves

No. in millisn s dillian
ALDareh 31, 2021 18.22 18223
Inereasef{decreasa) during the year - -
At March 31,2022 18,22 18113
Inerease{deerease) during tha year - -
At Maveh 31, 2023 18,12 182.23

Terms/ ights attachied o shares

Equity shares: The Campany lns one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each sharchalder is eligible for one vote per share helid. The dividend proposed by e
Board of Directars is subject fo the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Amnual Gieneral Meeting, except in case of interim dividend In the avent af liguidatian, the equity

B

| sharcholders are eligible to receive i remaining assets of the Company afler distnbuti of all preferential ts. i proy to their sharcholdi

:;1 Shares held by halding/ ulti Talding pany and/ or their subsidiavies/ assaciates

i Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its halding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are 4 below:
1

Mareh 31, 2003 March 31, 2022
Ascenilas Property Fund (Indin) Pee Limited, Singapore

12,229,444 (March 31, 2022 18223 444) equity shares of Rs 10 eaelt 18223

|

| 18223
i]

| Delails of shareholders halding more than 5% shaves in the Company

| Maveh 31,2023 Muarch 31, 2022

| No. in millian %o halding Mo, in million % holding

| Equity shares of Bs. 10 each Tully paid

| Ascendas Propeny Fund (India) e Limitad, the holding company 1822 9.99% 18.22 99.99%
| Note : As per records of the company, including its register of sharehy Ideis f bers and other declarations receivad fion sharehold ding beneficial inerest, the above

shareholding represents hoth tegal and beneficial ownerships of shares

Shares liehl by Prowaters (Equity shares of s, [0 each)
As at March 31,2023

rromater Name No,afshares at | change during | No. of shavesat | % af tatalshares| % of change
i e Leginning af the year the end of the turing the year
i. the year year
| Ascendas Py Fund {India) Pre Limited. thz holding com 18223444 - 18,223 444 59.99% -
!
1 As at Maveh 31, 2022
i Pramoter Name No.of sharcs at | chamge during | Mo, of shares at | % of tofal shaves| % af change
(| the Leginning of the year the cod of the during the year
|1I the year yoar
i Ascandas Pi Fund (India) Pre Limited, ths holding company 13,223,444 - 18223444 99,99 -

16 Dther equity

Alarch 31,2023 Marel 31, 2022
Capital redemplion veseive

Balanee m tha beginning of the year

85.00 23.00
Balance at the end of the yea A5.00 85.00
Capital Rederuplion Res | the 15 transfered on account of Duy Back of 8,500,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/ each al a premivm of Rs. 10 per shara in accardance with
the provisions of Compani<s Act.

Marcli 31,2083 March 31,2022

General veserve
Balanca at the beginning of the year

10.71 10.71
Balanee at the end of the year

10.71 10.7%

The seneral reserve is used fram fime to time 1o wansfer profits from relained eamings for

& PR puiy




e

- T e o e et ST

"i.
1

Cyber Peard Infarmation 'l'echnology Park Private Linited

CIN: UT2900TN20020TCOD0624

Notes ta the fnancial statements for the year ended Naech 31, 2023
(AT ampunts are in Millions of Indian Rupess, unless atherwise stated)

16 Other equily (continued..)

Seeurities premivm acconnt
Halance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

Securilies premium is used to record the premivim on issue of shares The reserve {x wiilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act

Debenture vedemplion reserve
Balance al the beginning of the year

Add: Amount transfermed (16) { from surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Batance at the end of the yean*

The Company has issuzd redeemable non-conventible debentures. Accordingly, the C
DRR out of profits af the Campany available for pyymeut of dividend. DRR is requiv
has created debenture redemplion reserve on a pro rata basis

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year

March 31,2023 Marel) 31, 2022

—_ A

3843 8945
8345 3345

March 31,2023 Mareli 31, 2022

S e

10232 100.65
.66 L&7
103.98 102.32

P (S pital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (a5 amended), require the Company to creale
ed to be created for an amaunt which is equal 10 10% of the valuz of debentures issued. The Company

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

109440 944 84
Prafiti{Loss) for the year {13233) 15123
Otber Compreheasive income arising from measurements of the defined beaelit liabilities{asser) (net of 1ax) - -
Transtermed from /(1a) dek Fenyption reserve {1.66) (167
Balauce at the end of the year 96041 1,094.40
Total other equity 1,248.55 1,340.58
17 Boveowings Non-curvent Current

March 31,2023 Mach 31, 2022
Mon-curvent Borvowings

March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022

B L e

Tedeeniab! d nan ible deb [Matz A] 925,00 925.00 = »
Redeemabl d ible debentures [iote B] 33249 332,49 - -
“Total Non-current Borrawings 1,257.49 1,257.4% - -

Nate At The Campany has issuzd 1325 Redeemable Unseeurad Non-C ible Debentures ("debenture 1%) on March 30, 2015 aggregating 10 s, 1,325 willion which carry an intarest
rate af 19% per annum payable half yearly {on May 15 and Moveriber 13). The rate of intarest may I rsal fram fime to time upon agreemant batween debenture trusize and the Campaiy.
“The term of each debemure shall be five years, however the Company has an option to redeem the debientnres at any timna before the expity of lzim of five years Sueh term could be funber
extendad (10 the extent pemmissible wider the applicable law), as may be mutually agreed by the partics at tha end of Four years from the date of issuz. A1 the fime of redemption of the
debentures, the Company way, at its sole discretion, choosa ta redeem the debenures with a premium as shall be declared al that lime. Duing the year ended March 31, 2018, the
Company has resel tha rate of interest from 19% pa to 13.65%5 pa will fTect from April 1, 2018 on both series of debentures with e spproval of debentura trustess and deberure holders.

On April 15, 2019, the Tas red d 100 NCD debenmre | senes s to s 400 milllion and on March 13, 2020, the Company hias deferred the repayment of balunce 925
MCD debreniure | sevies Falling dus on March 29, 2010 by fifteen years to March 78, 2015 wath thve approval af debenture holder and debeuturs trustee

Note B The Company has issued 740 Redeemable Ui d Non-C ible Dat F'Rs. 1 million each (“debentare 27), partly paid up of Rs.0.14 million cach on March 11, 2016
aggregaling 1o Rs 10249 million which cany an interest rate of 19%% per mutum payable hal( yearly (en May 15 and November 15), The Company has funher received 15t call mouey off
Rs.0.31 million per NCD an May 31, 2016 aggregating to Rs230 million. After |st call monay the paid up value per NCD is Rs.0.45 million and debenture value amounting to Rs332.49
million. The raie of interest may be 1eset frion fime to time upon agrezment between debeniure nustee and the Company. The term of each debenture shall be bwenly years (March 10, 2016
and May 30, 2036), however the Company has an oplion fo redeem the debentures at any fime before lhie expity of tenm of twenty years At the time of redemplion of the debentures. the

Conipany may, al its sole diseretion, chooss 1o redeei the det wath a p as shall be declared 3t that fime. During the year endzd March 31, 2018, the Company has reset the
rae of interest from 19% pa to 13.65% pa with effzct from April 1, 2018 ou hath series of del with the approval of det trustees md delienture holders
18 Other finaneial Habilities
Non-eurvent Current

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
Finaucial abilities at amavtired cast

Deposits received from customars 13288 5240 199.28 28274
Interest acerued bt not due on debentires - - 30,92 8092
Payable o capilol ereditors g - - - 28 52
Retention money payahla - - 733 FAL]
Total other financial liabilities 13288 2140 297,55 399.36




Cyber Peard Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624

Notes 1o the finaneal statements for ihie year ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounts ase in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otlierwise stated)

19 locome fax

a) Referved tax Habilities (net)

Deferved ux liahilies

Properly, plant and equipment

Defarred tax impact an wiamortized marketing fee
Diefermed tax mpact on fair valustion of seeurity deposits
Gross deferred fas labilities

DPefereva foax assein

Imipact of expenditure charzad to the statzment of prafit and loss in the
curtent year but allowed for 1ax purposes in subszquent yzars

Unabsoibred busi losses { unabsarbed depreciation lossf (hin
capitalization disallawanea earied forward

Minimum Allermative Tas (“MAT™) Credit eatithement

Gross defened tax nssels

Net Deferred lax linhilities

Reconcilintion of net deferved tax labilities;:
Wer deferrad tax lishilities at the beginning of the yex

March 31,2023

Mavch 31,2022

—_ e

23436 253,54
3.90 i1

- (]
20026 187.57
- 090
941 17.27
119.13 166,30
128,54 18447
161,72 103,10

Maveh 31, 2003 dawch 31, 2022

103.10 75.85
Tax (income)expense during the year recognizad in profit and loss 1143 {21.76)
MAT Credit wilization 4717 49.01
Net deferved tax Habilities at the end of the year 161.72 103.10
MAT credit expiry patiern
Assessment year Marel 31,2023 March 31, 2022
28209 - 3075
101910 13.68% 55.09
103031 1948 3948
2033-34 476 476
M34-34 1621 3622

119.13 166.30

¢} Cutrent tax

The major components af income tax expense for the years ended Mareh 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are-

Statement af prafit and loss:

Profit or less seetion Alarch 31,2023 Maceh 31, 2022
Current incame lax:
Current incame tax charge 96,14 86 56
Defarad tax chargef (eradin 1143 (21.76)
Tncome fax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 107.59 64,80
OCHszetion
Defenved tax related o items vecognized in OCH during the year:
Met lossXgain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - -
Incame tat chavged ta OCI - -
Reconciliotion of tax expense and the ting prafit multiplied by India’s domestic to rte for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accaunting prafit hefare income (nx {24.74) 21603
At India's statutory income tax rale of 29.12% (March 31, 2022 29.11%) (7.20) 6291
Effecis of
Exceptional it2m 4347 -
Other non-deductible expenses 2612 189
At the effective income tax rale of (30,0072 (Mareh 31, 2022 30.0035) 107.59 64.90
Income tax expense reportzd in the statement of profit and loss 107.59 64,50
20 Odherlinbilities
Non-carrent Current

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,3022
Deferred lease 1entals 1190 1248 784
Advange receivad from customers - 119 0.63
Statnary dues - 652 -
Employee Benefit payable - a10 0.0

11.40 10.59 8.56
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Cyber Pearl Information Technalogy Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002 TCA99624

Notes o the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023
{All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

21 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 34)
- Gratuity
- Compensated abisences
‘Tatal provisions
22 Teade payables

Trade pryable

Total outstanding dues af micio enterprises and small enterprises (refer noe balow)

Total owstanding dues of creditors other than mic Leiprises and small

- [telatad parties (Rafer Wote 41)
- Oihers

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no

Non-curvent

Covrent

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023

i ) s Mareh 31,2022

o1l .09

0.02 0.01

0.13 0.09

002 0.01

Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2012

- 025
1629 13.00
48.16 30.05
6145 63.30

and Madium Fe Devel

Trade Payable Ageing Sehedule

with suppliers who are regs

2 1 as micro, sniall or medium enterprises under “The Micra, Sniall
Act, 2006" as at March 31,2023 (It 0.25 Million as at March 31, 2022) This has been relied upon by the auditars.

Particulas

Outstanding for following periads from due date of payment

Not Due

Less than 1 year 1 -2 years -3 Yemrs

3
Mare than Tatal

As al Mavch 31,2023

Micro Srall Mediwn Enterprises

- Undisputed Dues

= Dispuled duss

Othver than Micro Small Madivm Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues

- Disputed dues

As at Maveh 31, 2022

Micro Small Medium Enteeprises

- Undisputed Dues

= Dispured dues

COihar than Micro Small dadium Enterprises
- Undisputed Dues

- Disputed dues

1607 203 1.50

025 - =

60.09 246 C.06

yeas

035 6445

. 0.25

44 63.05

2% Covvent (o lahillties (net)

Cutrent tax liabilifies (ret of advanes taxes Rs 823 millions (Rs 8§ 28
millions ason March 31, 2022))

hY

Iarch 31,2023 Maceh 31, 2022

A

7348 TIAF

1345 7345




Cyber Pearl Information Technolopy Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900TN2002PTC099624

Notes to the financial statements for (he year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

24 Revenue from operations March 31,2023 Mavch 31, 2022
1 Revenue from Contract with Customers
Lease Rentals 597.85 563.88
| Maintenance income 16279 11895
| Parking Income 17.51 16.40
Amenities income 879 646
"Tolsl Revenue from Contraet with Customers 786.94 735.69

Timing of vevenue recognition

i Services transferred over lime 86.94 735.69
| T'otal vevenue from contracts with customers 786.94 735,69
k
E Cantract Balanees
i Trade receivables 20.78 5.06
I Secuity Deposits 33216 335.14
Notes:
| a. Trade receivables are generally due within 1 month upon completion of service. In certain contracts, advances are required befare the service is provided.
i b. Contract assets represents unbilled revenue, which is excess of revenue over billing. The ling bal of these d primarily on
i account of certain billing wndertaken post year-end.
e. Contract liahilities rep s received in ad from whicl is in the nature of defered revenue.
l 25 Other income March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Interest incame an
Bank deposits 4038 3140
| Securily deposits 185 095
| Inter corporate deposits 20,50 -
:i Income tax refund - 1098
I Others 0.02 8.00
# Gain on sale of investment property 0.23 -
| 62.98 5133
1 26 Employce hencfits expense March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 195 203
i Graluity expense (Note 34) 0.03 0.03
-li Compensated absences - =
; Stafl wellare expenses 0.12 0.08
j 110 14
i
| 17 Finunce Cost Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
!I Interest expense on
| - Borrowings 171.65 171.65
| - Lease linbilities 573 5.84
~| = Depesit received from Customers 1L71 11.26
1 189.09 188.75
|
]' 28 Depreciation and amortization expense March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment and investmeni properlies 146.34 148.15
Amortization of goodwill 40,24 40.24
Depreciation of Right-ofuse assels 291 2.94
189.49 191.33

SeRRR e SR PR
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Cyher Pearl Information Technology Pork Private Limited
CIN: UT2900TN2002PTCO99624
Nates to the financiol statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless olherwise stated)

29 Other expenses

Power and fucl
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Corporate Social Respansibility expenditure (Refer Note 31)
Insurance
Rates and tnxes
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Legal and professional fees (Refer note 30)
Directors' sitting fees
Lease mmnagement fee {Refer Note 41)
Property management {Refer Note 41)
General management expenses (Refer Note 41)
Muarkeling expenses
Security expenses
"' ‘--Uml'd‘ l‘-.J ¥
Provision for doubtful debts and ad

Bad debts written ol
Loss on sale of properly, plant and eguipments
Miscellaneaus expenses
30 Legal and professional chavges inclutde the following amounts paid/ payable to awditars

As auditor

- Statutory Audit fees

- Limited Review fees

- Group Reporting nudit fee
- Ot of puckel expenses

31 Corpornte Social Responsibility (CSR)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

4.0 9.32
38.00 6.2
2.7 3ian
4.58 4.26
2.96 2.78
1183 1107
0.94 0.7
1389 11.52
: 045
7.76 7.3
15.51 14.46
23.66 2170
1149 1199
2094 22.09
0.95 040
0.02 (131
0.01 L7
: 0.16
0.52 0.23
190.16 188.77
i.15 .50
040 -
0.50 042
o 210
2.05 KX

The gross anlount yet to be spent by the Company on Carporate Social Responsibility (CSR) during the year is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022 - Rs Nil). The

details of amount spent during the year by the Company on C5R are as below:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 4.58 4.26
b)  Amount approved by Board to be spent during the year 4.58 4.26
(Rs. in millions)
WMareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Amount  Amount yetto  Total Amount  Amount yet in Totala i
c)  Amonnt spent during the year paid be paid iid he paid otal amoun
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - - - -
i1) On purposes other than (i) above 4,58 - 4.58 4.26 - 4.26
4.58 - 4.58 4.26 - 4.26
d)  Details related to spent / unspent abligations: Maveh 31,2023 Mavch 31, 2022
1. Amount paid to beneficiaries - -
11. Contribution to implementing agency (refer note 38)
Amount speut 4.38 4.26
4.58 4.26
Note:

1. As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, fhe shortfall in the current year can bz sct off agninst the exeess spent in the previous years. Dur ing

the FY 2021-22 & FY 2022-23, there is no excess/shortfall in the amount spent.

2. The Company has made the payment 1o Capilaland Hope Foundation India (formerdy known as Ascendas Gives Foundation) whe in turm has used the

funds i the below projects:

CSI Activities March 31, 2023 | Amount transferrved
fo ongoing projecls
A. Ambulanee with other nedical cquipment to € issioner of Health and Family Welfare, Hyderabad 229 -
B. Education/Health care seclor 229 -
Total . 138 -

AHTS [
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Cyher Pear] Inforniation Technology Park Private Limited
CIN: U72000T N20021TC099624

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

32 Exceptional Ttem March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for Inter Corporate Deposits given, acerued interest tiere on and TDS on interest receivable? 303.82 -
303.82 )

¥Ilhe Company. during tie year, as part of the Group’s overall acquisition strategy, has made Intercarporate deposits (10Ds) with Arshiya Narthern
FTWZ Limited {"ANFL") in multiple tranches apgregating Rs. 287 Million. These ICD's were d by a oy g from Arshiya Limited,
the Parent of ANEL. The Company has a second charge on the ANFL land and property (including development ownership, leaschold rights and ather
rights and benefits with respect 1o the above referred property). During October 2022, lenders of ANFL have initiated insolvency pracecdings against

ANFL in the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) under the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016, ANFL obtained a stay order from

National Company Law Appellate Tritumal (NCLAT) against the NCLT admission, which was d in February 2023, following which an Interim
Resolution Professional (“1RP") has been appointed by NCLT {0 oversee the aflairs of ANFL. IRP issued o public notice requesting the creditors of

ANFL to submiit their claims and accordingly the Company has filed its claims with the IRP on March 03, 2023 ([CD's - Rs. 287 Million and Tnterest on
ICIY's of Rs. 16.82 Million).

Due to the sbove referred event which has a bearing on the realization of the 1CD's {including interest and TDS thereon), the Manog lias fully
provided for the ICD's of Rs. 287 Million, interest acerued on 1CD's of Rs. 1513 Million (Upto November 2022) and TDS on Interest receivable of Rs,

1.68 Million. The tetal provision of Rs. 303,82 Million has heen disclosed as Exceptional Trem. The matter is pending resolution with the IRP as on the
date of approval of financial stat I
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33 Earnings per shove (EPS)

3

-

Basic EPS amounts are caleutated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year alributable to equity holders of the Cs
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

pany by the weighted averagy

Diluted EPS amounts are ealeulated by dividing the profit atibutable to equity holders of the Company (afier adjusting for interest on the convertible

lebentures) by the weighted g ber of equity shiares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would
bic issued on conversion of all the dilutive potentinl equity shares into equity shares,

The fallowing reflects the incene and shara data used in the basic and dilwted EPS computations:

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

(Loss)/profit altributable to equity holders for basie i (132.33) 151.23
Prafit attvibulable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (132.33) 151.23
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Mo.) 18.22 18.22
Weighted average mumber of equily shares adjusted For the cffeet of dilution (Ma.) 18.22 18.22
{Loss)/Eavning per shave (EPS)

Basic (Rs.) (7.26) 8.30
Diluted (Rs.) (7.26) 8.30
Gratuity and other post-cmployment benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Every pl wha has compleied five years or more of service gels a gratuity on departure at 13
days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs, 2 million. The scheme is funded with LIC, the
contributions are paid to Ascendns Services (Indin) Private Limited, who contributes to LIC, The following tables ize the I of net
beuefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and e funded status and { guized in the bal sheet for gratuily benefit,
Amount included are led off to two decimal

Particulns Mavch 31, 2023 Mavel 31, 2022

Statement of profit and loss
Nel emplayee benefit expense (recognized in layee benefits expense)

P

Current service cosl 0.02 0.02
Interest cost on benehit obligation 0.01 0.01
Expected retucn on plan assets (0.00) .
Net actuarial loss/ (gain) recognized - -
Met benefit expense 0.03 0,03
Balance sheet
Defined benefit obligation 0.18 0.14
Fair value of plan assets (0.06) (0.04)
Plan (asset)! liability 0.12 0.10
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit abligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 0.4 0.10
Interest cost 0.02 0.01
Current service cost .01 0.02
Actuarial {gain)/ loss an abligation 0.02 0.01
Closing defined henefit obligation 0,19 0.14
Changes in the faiv value of plan assels
Opening friv value of plan asscls 0.0 0.0
Expected retumn 0.00 -
Contributions by employey 0.02 -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) {0.00) -
Closing faiv value of plan assels 0.06 0.04
Actual veturn on plan asscls
Expected veturn on plan nssets 0.00 -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets {0.00) -
Actual return on plan nssets 0.00 -
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34 Gratuity and other post-employment henefit plans (continued..)

Investment dletails of plan assets
Investment with insurer - Assets under Schemes of Insurance

The principal assumptions vsed in detevmining grarity obligation

Discount rate 7.57% 6.96%

Salary Incrense Rate 10.00% 10.00%

Mortalily Rate TALM 201 2-14 ulimate TALM 2012-14
ultimate

Withdrawal Rnte 10.00% 10.00%

Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumplions and expected centributions nre nol disclosed since the same are nol material,

35 Commitments and contingencies
i, Leases

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor
‘The Operating leases on renting t Property entered into by the Company are usually for o fixed term of three years excepl a few customers for
whom the fixed tem is live yenrs and above. The lessce has the option Lo cither renew the lease for a further perind as may be decided upen by mutual

consent or vacate the premiscs. During the tenure of the lease, the Operation and Maintenance charges are to be bone by the lessee for all the services
wind facilities provided by the Company.

Future minimum rentals receivable under v llable operating leases arc as follows:

March 31, 2023 Mavech 31, 2022
Within one year 266.82 163.94
Aller one yenr but not more than five years 277.36 136.81
Nore than five years - 5

544,18 300,75

b, Commitments
i} The estimated t of contracts, net of ad remaining Lo be cxecuted an eapital L and not provided is Res. 16.31 million (March 31,2022

: R 3114 million)

ii) For commitments relating to issue of redeemable non-convertible debentures, refer note 17,

. Contingent linbilities

March 31, 2023 Maveh 31, 2022

Tmpaet of pending litigations

(A)L tax matters under disp 156.74 156.74
(B) Sales tax matters under dispule 28.70 28.70
(C) Serviee tax matters under dispute 7644 76.44
(D) Stamp Duty under matter dispute 61.28 61.28

(A) Income (ax matters unider dispute

“The Company has received income tax assessment orders for the assessment yeurs 201011 and 201112 demanding income tax including intevest
aggregating to Rs. 2,75 million on account of short grant of TDS eredit and other adjustments against which the Company has filed rectifi

petitions and is confident that the maiter will be decided in its favour.

«Incame lax assessment order far AY 201314 - Reassessment under section u/s 147 af the Act and demand notice of s, 38,96 million ws 136 of the
Acl was raised dated February 28, 2022 for AY 2013-14. The above demand was raised as the AD has not considered advance tax and TDS receivable,
accordingly the Company has filled for rectification of mistakes apparent fram records and confident of getting F hle onder.

«Income tax nssessment order for AY 2013-16 - Reassessment ynder seetion wis 147 of the Act and demand notice of Rs, 97.43 million ws 156 of the
Act dated March 26, 2022 was raised for AY 2015-16, Demand was primarily on account of Adjustments made 1o the retorned income attributable to

| 1 interest i ino ta Rs. 30.57 million and deduetion not allowed towards seetion 8OIACA)(iii) of the Act (for tax holiduy period) on
Rs. 155.96 million under section 801A (4) (iii), Hence, AO has comy | net taxable i of Rs, 205.79 million (including Rs. 19.26 million
already diselased by the Company as taxable i ). Additianal tax demanded on ahove income at nomal tax rate applicable for AY 2015-16 alter

adjusting advance tax paid and TDS receivable is Rs. 34.06 million (total demand amount of Rs. 69.95 million less advance tax and TDS receivable of
Rs. 35.89 million), lnterest levied on the total tax amounting to Rs. 44.72 million and Denand for refind already issued amounting to Rs. 18.63

million, The Company had filed an nppeal against the order belore Commissioncr of Income Tax (Appeals) and is confident tiat the matier will be
decided i its fivour.
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| 1 Jncome tax assessment order for AY 2017-18 - The Company had received a drafl assessinent order dated April 3, 2021 computing the income
assessed amounting to Rs 29.49 million. Demand was primarily on nccount of Transfer pricing adjustment under section 92CA of the Income Tax

Act, 1961, with respect to interest expense on Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Dehentures (FCCDs) issued to Ascendas Property Fund (India) Ple

Limited (*AFPI"} Rs, 18.95 million and Addition under Section 68 of the Act with respect 1o receipls being vefundable security deposits in the hands

of the Company — Rs. 1054 million. The Company had reccived the final assessment order dated June 24, 2021 and cany forward loss of the

Company has been adjusted to this extent. Penalty procecdings also initinted ws 270A and 271AAC vide notices dated June 26, 2021, Letters for

| keeping the penalty proceedings in abeyance was filed with AQ. The Company has filed appeal before CIT(A) and is awaiting for the hearing notice.

Jncome tax assessment aider for AY 2018-19 - The Company had received a drafl assessment order dated September 20, 2021 ing the i
| ' assessed amounting (o Rs, 21.38 million. Demand was primarily on account of Transfer pricing adjustment under section 922CA of the Income Tax
Acl, 1961, with respeet to interest expense on Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {(FCCDs) issued to Ascendas Property Fumd (India) Pte
Limited (*AFPI')- Rs. 2138 million. The Company had received the final assessment arder dated November 12, 2021 and carry farward loss of the
Company has been adjusted o this extent. The Company had filed an appeal against the order before Commissioner of Ticome Tax (Appeals). Motice
ta initinte penalty proceedings also sent 1o the Company ufs 270A an November 12,2021, The Company has filed reply to the said notice.

(1) Sales lax matters under dispute
| The Company has been served with demand natices for Rs. 28.70 million from the sales lax department in respeet of financinl years 2005-06 to 20 13-
14 under the Andlica Pradesh Value Added Tax (APVAT) Act for levy of VAT an transfer of right to use goods.
In the opinion of the management and based on the review of (he arder issued by the Appellate Deputy Commissioner (Commercial Taxes), the
‘ assessing officer has raised the demand an the Company in respect of letting out of fit outs to tenants and the Company has filed an appeal against the

I same,
I During the period ended December 31, 2019, The VAT Appellate Tribunal has remanded the matters to ing autharity di g the
'i officer to work ont lease rentals for fit outs For the financial year 2008-09 bused on the actual lense rentals as per books of account instend of

propartionste basis and furtlier, the assessing autharity has given the ouder during the earier years in respect of 2009 -10 and 2010-11 based on the
actual lease ventals.

'I (C) Service tax matters under dispute
1 The Company had received o show cause notice dated Februmy 18, 2020, imposing service lax on reimbursement charges collected by the Company

for the wtilities, for the period May 2015 to June 2017, The total liability as per the SCN amounts to Rs. 43.83 million. The company had disclosed the
| nbove amount as a contingent lability.

The Company subsequently has received a d A order fiom the commissianer of GST md Excise amounting to Rs. 38.22 willion and consequential
i penalty of Rs 38,22 million. The Company has filed an appeal with CESTAT in the month of Apr™21 and is awaiting o response. The cantingeut
linbility tason [ ber 31, 2022 to Its. 7644 million,
| (D) Stamp Duty under matter dispute

| The Company entered into an ags t witli Mi/s. Mindtree to purchnse the asset which liad been sold to them previously. The Company decided Lo
] register the Land and Building under the mode of Surrender of deed and sought an excimption under Indian Stamp Act, 1399 under SEZ The

! planation was nol pted by Lhe Joint Sub-Registrar-ll who bave demanded the Company to pay the stamp duty @@ 8% of the Purchase Value

‘ amounting to INR 640 million which is around INR 44.98 million, The Company paid the same on March 11, 2016 under protest.

Subsequently, the Comprny received a notice from District registear, Chengalpattu on July 05, 2016 demanding an amount of INR 62 million as
payable towards the Stamp duly charges, for which the Company replied that they have alrcady poid INR 44.98 million under protest and the same has

.I not been considered by the Registrar at the tinte of issue of notice.

The Company capitalized the stamp duty charges paid amounting INR 44.98 million 1o the value of the land and building and started deprecinting the

assets. The managenent believes that the Company will reverse the value of the stamp duty at the time of receipt of refund and adjust

cast of nsset,

The registear appointed a govermment vatuer to do the tuation of the building and the valuation was completed as on September 30, 2017 nnd the

;'| valuer submitted the report directly to the repistrar.

it ngainst the

Ii | Other litigations
|

| (a) The Company is also involved in certain pending litigations with thicd pacties. These cases are pending with various courtsifonuns and are scheduled
I

for heavings. Afler considering the ei and legal evaluation there on, the Company's gement believes that these cases will not have any
| i impact on financial stnlements.

| | 36 On June 30, 2015, pursuant to the approval of the Sct of Amalgamation between the Company and Ascendas 1T SEZ (Chennai) Private Limited

\ (“AITSEZ" or “llic transferor company™) and lheir respective hareholders and credi {"the Sc! ") by H ble High Count of Madras ("lhe

I Court”) on 300h June 20135, AITSEZ amalgamated with the Company with effect from March 31, 2015 (‘the Appointed Date?). The Court order was filed

I by the Company with the Registrar of Companies on 10th Aupgust 2015 (the “Effective date™). In accordanee with the Scheme, all the nssets and

| liabilities of the transferor company have been ¢ led at book values in the books of the Company. The difference between the net assets taken over

and the book value of investments held in AITSEZ us at March 31, 2015 of Rs, 885 willions had been recognized as Gooadwill in books to be amortised

‘: aver its useful life, This necounting freatment, although different from thut prescribed undey the Indian Accounting Standards, has been approved by the

i Court. Goadwill is amortized over a period of 22 years which represents the remaining useful life of the buildings taken over in nmalganiation,

| Aecordingly, the Company has recognised amortization of goodwill of Rs. 40.24 millions (March 31, 2022: Rs. 40,24 Millions) and the net canying

value of the goodwill is Rs. 563.26 millions (March 31, 2022; Rts. 603.50 millions). Had the Company followed the principles of Ind AS 103, the

| Jeprecintion and amortizati I would have been lower and the profit for the year coded March 31, 2023 waould have been higher by 1ts. 40,24

| millions (March 31, 2022 - the depreciation nnd amorti expense would have been lower and the profit would have been higher by Rs. 40.24
millions), and other equity would have been higher by Rs. 563.26 millions (As ot Mareh 31, 2022 — Rs. 603.50 millions).

RSy
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37 Segment Information

‘The Company’s business activities fall within a single repoitable segment i.g., leasing. Heuee, there are no additionnl disclosures ta be provided under
Ind AS - 108 Segment information wilh respect to the single reportabile segment other than those alveady provided in the financial slatements.

The Company is domiciled in India and all the non-current assels of the Company ore located in lndia. The Company's revenue from opcralions from
external customers relate (o leasing in the nature of lease rental income, op
the Statement of profit and loss.

and maint i and other amenilics income as disclosed in

38 Significant accounting judaements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of fnancial statements in conformity with the recopnition and measurement prineiples of Ind AS requires management 1o make
judg ts, esli and plions that affeet the reported balances of revenues, cxpenses, assets and ligbilities and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates eould result in oulcomes tha
to the carrying nmiount of assels or liabilities affected in future periods,

{ require n mnterial adjustment

a) Juilgements

In the process of applying the ace g polici has made judpy fating to determination of lease classifieation which has the most
significant ¢fFect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The Comy has entered into ial propeny leases an ils in t propertics. The Company has determined, based on an evalustion of the
terms and conditions of the anang ts such ns the lease term nol constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property,
that it refains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these propertics and so ts for the 1s a3 operating leases,

1) Estimnates and assumptions

The key assumplions concering the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ol the veporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the caimying amounis of assels and liabilitics within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Campany based its
ptions and esti on par ilable when the financial stat Is were prepared. Existing circ and plions about fiature

developments, however, may chinge due 1o market changes or cireumstanees arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes nre
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(1) Taxes

Deferred tax asset, comprizing of Minimum Altemative Tax ("MAT") credit is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay
nommal incame tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward and suffieient taxable profit will be
available agninst which the MAT eredit can be wilized. Significant t jud 1 is required to determine the anount of MAT credil that can
be recopnized, based upen the likely timing and level of fisture taxable profits together wilh future tax planning strategies. There is o significant

Judg L required by the I Lin fng the tax Niigations and (he potential exp 1o determine adequacy of provision made in respect of
the tax litigations mentioned in note 35(c)

(ii) Uschul lives of Investment Prapeity and Property, Plant and Equipment-Notes 2.2(b), {¢)yand (d).

{iii) The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating Lo COVID-19 an the carying amounts of investment
property (including under devel ), property, plant and equipment, goodwill, capital work in progress, receivables and tox assets. In developing the
lating to the possible future rtainties in the globinl i ditions | of (his pandemic, the Camg as at the date of
approval of these financial has used intemal and external sources of information, ic forccasts and
somrces on the ted Tuture perfi

¥

lrom market
@ of the Company. The Company has performied sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on
current estimates expects the caying amount of these assels as reflected in the balance sheel as at March 31, 2023 will be recovered. The impact of
COVID-19 on the Company’s fi il stat ts may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial stalements.

3 Fi ial visk 2 abijectives and policies

The entity’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borowings, seewrity deposits, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilitics is to finance and support the entity’s operations. The entity’s principal financial nssets include inter corporate deposits, trade und other
receivables, and eash and cash equivalents that derive direotly fiom its operations.

The entily is exposed to credit risk and liguidity risk. The cntity's senior the t of these rigks. The entity’s seniov
management is supported by a finncinl risk conmnittee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate finnucial risk goveniance fiamework for the
entity, The financial risk illee provides ¢ to the entity's senior management that the entily’s financial risk activities are govermed by

appropriate policies and d and that ial visks are identificd, measured and managed in accordance with the entity’s policies and risk
abjectives. The Board of Directors veviews and agrees policics for managing each of these risks, which are smnmarized below.

GHARTERED
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39 Financlal risk management ohjectives aml policies (Cantinued..)

e

i. Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk that counterpaty will not meet its Lligations under a financial i t or contract, leading to a financinl loss. The

Company is exposed to credit risk Tom its operating activities (prinarily teade receivibles) and from its financing activities and other financial
inglriments.

‘The Comy Llishes an all t for impai L hat rey 13 its estimate of losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main
comy Lof this all ic estimated losses thal relate to specific tenants or counterpartics. The allownrce account i3 used Lo provide for impninment
losses. Subsequently when the Company is satisfied that no recovery of such losses is possible, the fi ial assel is ideved ivec ble and the
amount charged to (he allowance account is then written off against the canying t of the impaired fi inl asset.

A tle balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of eredil risk. The maximun exposure to credit risk is represented by the canying value
of each financinl asset in the balance sheel.

ii. Linuidity Risk

The Company's ebjective is to maintain a balance between inuity of funding and flexibility ¢ gl the use of bank deposits and loans. The lable
below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial linhilities based on conlractual undiscounted payments (including interest poymenis):

(Rs, in millions)
Within | year 1 lo 5 years After 5 years Tatal
Year ended Mareh 31,2023
Darrowings (interest acciued) £0.92 - 1,25749 1,338.41
Other fnancinl liabilities - security deposits* 199,28 170,48 - 169,76
Otlier financial liabilities - others 7.35 - - 733
Lease liabilitics 0.74 512 51.09 57.55
Tuade payables 64.45 - - 64.45
3524 176,20 1,308,358 1,437.52
Year ended Maveh 31, 2022
Botrowings (interest accrued) 80.92 - 1,257.49 1,338.4)
Other financial liabilities - security deposits® 2824 64,03 - u1L»
Otlier financial liabilities - others 35770 - - 35.70
Lease liabilities 045 4.61 5244 57.50
Trade paynbles 63.30 - - 63,30
463,11 69.24 1,300.93 1,842.28
* based on contractual undi led payall

A0 Due to micro and small enterprises

The Company lhias certain dues to suppliers repistered under Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (*MSMED Act"). The
disclosures pursuant (o the snid MSMED Act are os follows:

‘Eﬂlculm's Asat Asat
Maveh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

(1) the principal amount and the interest due (hercon (to be shown separately) vemaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accOuming year;

Principal - 0.25
Interest { Lnpaid)

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of seetion 16 of Ihe Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the of the payment madc to the suppli beyond the
appointed day during cach ace ounting year,

Principal

Interest

(e) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paynient (which have been paid
but bieyond the appointed day during the year) Bt without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Suall ind Medinm Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

Principal

Interest

{dl) the amonnt ol interest accrued and remaining uapaid at the end of ench accounting year

(¢) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Uie succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of
| deductible espenditure under scciion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Act,

2006

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the hasis of
information available with the Company and bave been relied upon by auditors.
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41

Related party disclosure

41,1 List of velated pavties

Ultimate Holding Company

CapitaLand India Trust (Formerly known as Ascendas India Trust), Singapore

Holding Company

Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Limited, Singap

Key management personnel Ms. Meha Singh, Company Secretary

Independent Directors Mr. M.N. Vidyashankar

Enterprise on which a key shareholder ofthe | Ascendas Services (India) Private Limited

Company is having significant inflience Capitaland Sinpay

(BP&C) Ple Lid (Formerly known as Ascendas Land Singapore Ple Limited)

Ascendas Services Ple Limited, Singay

Fellow subsidiary A fas Property Fund (FDD) Ple Limited, Singapore
A das IT Park (Chennai) Limited
VITP Private Limited

Capilaland Hope Foundation (Indin) (formerly known as Ascendas Gives Foundation)

Pollax Solar Solulions Private Limited
ll Ieliostech Investment Holdings Pie. Lid.

41,2 ‘Transactions with related pavties

Nature of transaction

Name of related party March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A las Services (India) Private Limited:
- Property Manag i 15,51 14.46
Expenses incurred by the Company - Lease Management Fee 7.76 7.23
- General Management charges 28.68 24,90
- Marketing fees 15.43 12,36
Expenses incurred on behalf of the Campany Ascendas Services (India) Private Limited 1.20 293
by the Related Parties CapitaLand Singapore (BP&C) Ple Lid - 0.60
VITP Private Limited 0.01 -
Interest expense on Borrowings ‘Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Ple Linited 171.65 171.65
Corporale Social Responsibility expenditure CapitaLand Hope Foundation (Tndin) 4.58 4.26
Directors' silling fees Mr, MM Vidyashankar - 0.45
Salaries, wages and bouwus Ms. Meha Singh 1.95 1.59
Investments made Pollax Solar Solutions Private Limited 48.08 -
Investments redeeimed Heliostech Tnvestment Holdings Ple. Lid. 44,47 -
413 Balanees with velated parties :
Nature of year endl balonee Mame of velated party March 31, 2023 Marveh 31, 2022
CapilaLand Singapore {BP&C) Pte Ltd - 0.14
Trade Paables A 1 : Services Ple Limited - 0.29
VITP Private Limited 0.04 0.03
Ascendas Services (India) Private Limited 16.25 12.54
Interest accrued bul not due on debentures Ascendas Property Fund (FDI) Pte Limited 80.92 80.92
Borrowings A das Property Fund (FDI) Ple Limited 1.257.49 1,257.49
[Investments CapitaLand Hope Foundation (India) 0.01 0.01
|Investnents Pollax Solar Solutions Private Limited 361 -

This space has been intentionally left hlank




Caher Pear] Information Technalopy Park Private Limited

CIN: U72000°TN1002PTCI96 2

Hates to the Tinauelal sitenents fur the year ended March A, 2028
(Al amvasrils ane in Aliflions of indkin Rupecs, unbess athenwipe slated)

41 Fair value measurenicaly
The camrying valuz of faanctl instruments by cate

e is oy follows:

Partieulurs At at March 31, 1023 As at March 31, 2022
Cost EVIPL Amanked Cost Crout FVIL Amonized Cost
Flnanchul asicls
ivestimdins - - 0162 - -
Loms - - - - - -
Trade rochvaliles . - 0.7% . - 304
|Cash and cash cquivalkeins - - [EVR L - . 3858
Bask bakinces atler than cash ond eash equivalonts - - - - - Aol
Oilier Mansial assels (euirent and nan-cament) - - RLRY - - 071
Tutal = - 802,00 = - 1,200.76
Financlal labililies
Bomowings - - 1,2357.49 - - 1,257.49
Lass Habilities geurent and nap-cucrcot) - - 3736 - - 5230
Tinde pavabikes - - (2R ES - - 4130
ar finanzil Volililies - - 143 - = 13076
| - - 1,799.03 - - 1,830,05 |
A3 Falr value levarchy
Tha Fellawing table provides W fir vale Tesaschy of the Company s assats and Habilides.
Particulars Axat March 31,2023 As it March 31, 2012
Carrying amnt Fiir value Carrying amount Falr value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tevel | Level 2 Ley
Flnanclal assets A feasared af nmortized cosi)
Trade recchvables pIvh ! | - - 0,73 5.0 - - 506
Crsliand sl equivakoms 9.9 - . 6934 pIES] - - EIER )
Rank balanees other thancash ard cashequivalelis - - - - FL0.00 - - Al
Oiher fnancials assels 2183 - - 1.8 .72 - - 0.3
Bzl - # 302.00 1,004, 76 = - 120476
Assets for which fale value ave dlsclosed
1 prog 1,381.92 ‘ - #,146.00 1,112.31 - - pRITE]
182,91 = = H, 146,00 134283 - - 704100
Financial Ialilles (M eavrred af nmorticed cosii
Hormowiigs 125749 - - 1,254 1,157.49 . - 125749
Lease Yiabikities geiyman and tan-curme i) 5156 - 57.50 3150 - - 5750
Trade pavables A4A5 =: = 6443 [AR] - - G330
Ol fivancial labilitics 41043 - 420,13 451,76 - - 43176
| 1,790.93 = = 1,799.23 L AMLNS - = 1,810.05

Nitleks
Level 1 fgts are quoted prices fumadjusted) in ootive nukets far identical assets or liabitides that the entity can acecss a1 the measuramest date.
Leved 2 ingats ane fnas ather (o quoted prices included witldn fevel § it are observable fr the asset or ability, silher direeily arindinectly

Level 3 inpits ane unabsgrvalile inputs for (he asset ot HiahiTiy,

There luve been 1o trivafers between (e lavels during the period.

The camying wiouds of nde receivables, trde payables, capilal creditors and cash and cash cquivalents are corsidered @ he e s as i Foe v abes, due to (heir shant-teea ronee, The fair values for Roans, Lk balances, insestment and
ot finansial assets & liabifities were cakcalited based an casl Tows discouted ushng a cumrent fending wie. They ane chsified a5 bovel 3 fake values in fhe i vabue licrrely dng 1o the inclusion of upobservible inputs. ineluding comnerputy
coedit risk

Tt e values of nl Ings e based on di d

1 Now s using a current | g ke, They are elaseifled as bevel 3 Fabr values in the fair valie erarcly dus ta U use ol unobservalie inas, inchiding owieredit risk,

For Mnancial assets & Uabilitics ot are weasured al e vatie, e earmying andaunts ore gl | the Fxir vahaes,

i o
S cHA\ERED T
\Aceo :
A

*




Cylier Pearl Infurmatlon Technelugy Park Private Limited

CIN: UT2900°T N 2001 P TCO59624

Nates tn the fnanelsl slatenents far the year endud March 31,2023
LAN amannLs ane b Ml Tions of Tndian Rupees. uhess ellwmics siated)

44 Matio Analysis and lls elenents *

% change from
Tatia Nty DenaRiinator Barcl 31,2023 Mapch 3, 2002 Mareh3l,2013 40 'I{rplraullinn far change in the ratlo by mone than
‘March 31,3022 5% 2w coniparcd 1o 1he ratia of preceding year
s In Milifons (45} R In Milllens [) "
Currenl Assels LIRSS LT [(Current ratip las inceeased during e year dus io
Curgent raio (i tim kb = .
ratio fmn vimes) Comrent Listililies aE i 5451 A 2R [rvastmonts sado sl loans
Total Dot 184 1,038.41)
Dbt Bquity Ratio {n % ] B 3%
g ) Shurcholder's Equity’ 14078 156011 S HA
Dxb Service Coverago rath (in Limes) ff“": . ‘::;’; A i’;‘:"s 7 1033% MA
el 10 e0sts .0,
PAT Tt peefetence (13233 15119 iotisrm on ety has dow s s b pravision nade
Fetwn o Exuity ratio {in %) any ey 10% REET I vesynt o fter conposate depanit ghven, liteesl
i ancholder's Bquiny” 1,83078 LEa swerued thereon and TOS vn inte rest seceivable,
Mot salis. TA6H TS
et Poccivable Tupnaver Baliv fin tines) ::::';:i“:g‘"r:‘:;" s nu 3 ns 2% MA
s veragge snbilhod nevenoe
el sales FEadl T
Iet Cayital Turmever Ratio (in times) (Cugtenls aseets - Currenl 0 = (R 1S R0 (R
ilities 760,53 6158
Mot Prodit (133 151, [Pet Proiit s deveeased duo to provison piade in
et Prol it ratio lin %) z 17 = % RELE b rospeetof Inter corporate deposit giveny, litomst
et salles; TEa IR ceried Hroon aind TOS o inlerest recvivable.
([Enings beloee inferest 16131 Wi Tteturn on Capital BrpToyed Tasd 1 e b
eturn n Capital Employed (in %) il o e el s T‘:";“:'I‘:";':\“‘:':ﬂ'l:"’l‘:}:ﬁ ﬂ:;d‘_’l‘gj_':llﬂ::‘;:‘
Capital Emplopral’ 285700 207201 i i
- Tarn on Investmont nas e reased dud o provisio
PAT (BAE) 15123 .
| retuirn o nvast ot in %) 29 = wl asers  [Padeinmasctelnke corponite depost sl
Tolal assets 349352 3.444.88 nyterest ancruend toreon wad TES on st
poveivable
*The Caniparty s it disclosed inwerdory Tamaver ratio since e Conspary s b docs ol eqaine eal

+ Thie Company has wat disshosed trude payables mimaver watin as e enmpainy 80oes Bt luve any parchuses.

1. Teand Dbt = Caneit b ings + Ho

3 Findice costs encliudes interest ondiscounling of secusily depasits and lease luabilitizs

Hhterest nzcrued

1 Slarehotder's Equity = Equity shore capital + ather eqaity {eveluding seralmtion resen)
1. Capital Emplayed = Tangilite Met Wonk ¢ Totl Debi 4 Deferred Tre Linbility




Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900TNI002PTCO99624

Notes to the inancial stintenents for the year ended Mareh 31, 1023
Al amounis are in Millions of lidian Fupees, unbess athanise sisted)

45 Capital management

For the purpesz of the Company’s capital mamagement, capital inchudes issued cquits capital and other equity reserves alinbulable to the equity hokders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Comprny s capital s to maximize the sharcholder vahue.

The cnfity inanages s capital sirusture and makes adjustments in fight of changes in ie conditions and the requi 15 of the financial covenants, To maintain ot adjust e
capital siructure, the entity may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholdass, retum capilal to sharcholders o issue new shares. The entity monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is nel debt divided by toial eapital plus met debl. The enlity’s policy is 10 keep the gearing ratio minimal The eofity inchudes within vet dibt, terst bearing loans and
borowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Morch 31, 2023 Mlareh 31, 2022
Intere st-hearing leons and borrowings 1,257 49 1,257.40
Trade payables [ERE] 63.30
Oiher financial kabilitics 4043 45176
Less: Cash and cash equivatents 1694.39) (318.98) ]
Net deht 1.042.9% 145357
Equity 143098 1,563.11
| Capital and net debt 247376 3,016 6%
Giearing miio 429 qE%

In order to achieve this overall cbjestive, the eality’s capital management, aniongst other things, ains 1o cnsure that it meets [nancial covenants attached to th interest-bearing loans
and borowings that define capital sirucnare requiremcnts. Breaches in mecting the finaneial covenants would pormit the lendor to immediately call leans and borowings Thera
have been no brenches in the fnancial covenants of any interest-bearing Toans and Borrowing in the current and previous perinds.

No changes were made in the objectives, poficies o p fur ging eapital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 222

46 Other statutory infarmation
W The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been imitiated or pending against the Company for holding any Bienami praperty,

(i) The Company dovs not have any transactions with companies struck off.
il The Company does not have aw chiiges or satisfaetion which is vt to be weaistercd wilh ROC beyond (he siatutory pericd,
{iv) The Company has nod traded or invested in Cryjne curmency or Virtual Corrency duringg the financlal vear.

(v} The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds to any oiher person(s) or entitylies), including foseign entities {Int liaries) with e und fing that the
Tntermediary shall
(a) direetly or indirectly kend o invest in oiher persons or entitics idendified in any manner wi by or on behalf of the conpany (Ultimate Beneficinres) or

(b) provide any guarniee, security of the like to or en behall of the Ullimate Beefician:s
(i) The Company has net reezived any fund froim any personls) ar entingies). ineluding Forefyn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wriling or
ollierwise) that the Company shall:

() dinceily or indircetly tend o invest in other persons or entities identifi d in any manner whatseever by ar on beholfof the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficianes) ar

{b) provide any guarantee, securily of the ke on behalf ofthe Uliimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company has not any such iransaction which 15 not recorded in the books of accounts that has been swmendered or diselosed a5 income during (e vear in the 1ax assessments
wnderthe Incamme Tasx Act, 1961 (such as, search or surey of any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Aet, 1961,

47 The Companics (Aecounts) Amendments Rules 2022 i ate ma of backnp of company’s books of aceount and other books sl papeers mainzained in electronic mods on
servers plysically focated in India on a daily basis with effect from Aupnst 05, 2022 The management evaliated several options during the Anancial year 202223 considering otlicr
iimportant aspeers such as mitigation of data and exber securily risks. The management has vow initiated actions and impl i is expected to be completed in due course of
Gime. The managenment is of v view that this dees not have any impact oo its Financials Statervents for the sear ended March 31, 2023

48 T fnancial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, were andited by § 1. Batliboi & Associans LLP, Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditors
who have expressed an squalified opinion vide their repart dated May 19, 2022

19 The fgares of the previous year have been rechusificd/regrouped for better p ion in the Ruancial and to confitn (o current years' classificationfdiselosures.

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Cyler Penr] Informatign Technology Park Private Limited

Sanjecy Dasgigita
Director Dircctor
DIN: 08221638 DIN: 00090701
Place: Singapore Flace: Singapore
Date: May 24, 2023 Date - Moy 29 2021‘

Neha Singh

Company Sceretany
Membership Mo, (A-32391)
Place: Hyderbad

Date  May 29, 2023
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Anascendas 1T Park

ATTENDANCE SLIP
CIN  U72800TN2002PTC089624
Name of the Company - Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited
Registered Office * Unit no. 7 & 8,1st Floor, Pinnacle Building, International

Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani,
Chennai - 600113,
Tamil Nadu, INDIA

Members attending the Meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the
Attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting room.

Folio No.

} No. of Shares

Name and Address of the Shareholder

i hereby record my presence at the 215 Annual General Meeting of the company Monday, 25%
September 2023 at 3:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Unitno. 7 & 8,1 S Eloor,
Pinnacle Building, International Tech Park, C5IR Road, Taramani, Chennai - 600113

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy



PROXY FORM

CIN 1 U72900TN2002PTC099624
Name of the Company - Cyber Pearl Information Technology Park Private Limited
Registered Office - Unit no. 7 & 8,1st Floor, Pinnacle Building, International

Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani,
Chennai - 600113,

Tamil Nadu, INDIA
Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address
Email-id
Folio No.

| / We, being the member(s) of shares / debentures of the above-mentioned
company, hereby appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:

Signature: , or failing him/her

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf for or against
any resolution at the 215t Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, 25
September 2023 at 3:00 P.M IST at the registered office of Company at Unit no. 7 & 8,1% Floor,
Pinnacle Building, International Tech Park, CSIR Road, Taramani, Chennai - 600113:

Ordinary Business:

Item No. 1 —  Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2023, the Auditors' Report and Directors Report.

Signed this___day of , 2023 Affix

Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder:
Signature of Proxy Holder(s):
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